




1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Applications to Serve-Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

EXPLANATION:  There are three terms on the Zoning Board of Appeals which expire June 30, 
2023: two (2) alternate one-year terms and one (1) 3-year term.  Four applicants have 
submitted their application to serve: David Crocker, Michael Eramian, Joe McKinnon and 
Nancy Medoff. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The Zoning Board of Appeals will be down three members, which 
will severely impact their ability to have a quorum. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to Appoint; 

• XXXX to a one-year alternate term on the Zoning Board of Appeals, which will expire 
June 30, 2024. 

• XXXX to a one-year alternate term on the Zoning Board of Appeals, which will expire 
June 30, 2024. 

• XXXX to a three-year term on the Zoning Board of Appeals, which will expire June 30, 
2026. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve; David Crocker 
2. Application to Serve; Michael Eramian 
3. Application to Serve; Joe McKinnon 

 

Agenda Item:  4A 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

4. Application to Serve; Nancy Medoff 
5. Policy Forms Completion Checklist 



Agenda Item:  4A1







Agenda Item:  4A2









Agenda Item:  4A3







Agenda Item:  4A4







Select Board Appointing Authority Checklist                                                                                                      
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Office of the Select Board 
Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 

 
 

 
Policy Forms and Conflict of Interest Online Training Completion Checklist 
 

Committee/Commission/Board Name: Zoning Board of Appeals  
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name:  David Crocker  
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       
Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    

       Sexual Harassment Select Board Policy #19  
         Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement    

         Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement   
 

          
Committee/Commission/Board Name: Zoning Board of Appeals 
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name: Michael Eramian 

       (This is a new applicant-all paperwork will be completed before swearing in, if appointed) 
 

Committee/Commission/Board Name:  Zoning Board of Appeals   
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name: Joe McKinnon  
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       
Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    

       Sexual Harassment Select Board #19  
Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement 
Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement  
 
Committee/Commission/Board Name: Zoning Board of Appeals  
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name:  Nancy Medoff 
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       

 

 X 
 X 

 X 

                     Agenda Item: 4A5 

 X 
 X 

 X 

 X 

 X 

 X 
 X 

 X 

 X 

X 

X 



Select Board Appointing Authority Checklist                                                                                                      
 

Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    
       Sexual Harassment Select Board Policy #19 
       Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement   
       Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement 

 X 
 X 

X 

X 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Interview and Possible Appointment of Applicants to the Shellfish Advisory Committee 
 

EXPLANATION:  Three of the four members whose terms are expiring June 30, 2023 have 
reapplied to serve another term (Gary Sharpless, Dan Smith and Mark Wisotzky).  One current 
member is not seeking reappointment.  Two new people have also submitted applications to 
serve (Steven Mundree and Jim Sloman).  In summary, there will be five slots open (three full 
membership positions and 2 alternate positions) and five applicants. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The Shellfish Advisory Committee will not have enough members 
for a quorum. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  There will be five motions: 

1. Motion to Appoint _____________ to the Shellfish Advisory Committee for a three-year 
term expiring June 30, 2026. 

2. Motion to Appoint _____________to the Shellfish Advisory Committee for a three-year 
term expiring June 30, 2026. 

3. Motion to Appoint ____________to the Shellfish Advisory Committee for a three-year 
term expiring June 30, 2026. 

4. Motion to Appoint ____________to the Shellfish Advisory Committee for an Alternate 1-
year term expiring June 30, 2024. 

5. Motion to Appoint ___________to the Shellfish Advisory Committee for an Alternate 1-
year term expiring June 30, 2024. 

 

Agenda Item:  4B 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application to Serve-Steven Mundree 
2. Application to Serve-Gary Sharpless 
3. Application to Serve-Jim Sloman 
4. Application to Serve-Daniel Smith 
5. Application to Serve-Mark Wisotzky 
6. Policy Forms Checklist 



Agenda Item:  4B1







Agenda Item:  4B2







Agenda Item:  4B3







Agenda Item:  4B4







Agenda item:  4B5







Select Board Appointing Authority Checklist                                                                                                      
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Office of the Select Board 
Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 

 
 

 
Policy Forms and Conflict of Interest Online Training Completion Checklist 
 

Committee/Commission/Board Name: Shellfish Advisory Committee  
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name:  Steven Mundree  

         (This is a new applicant-all paperwork will be completed before swearing in, if appointed) 
          
 

Committee/Commission/Board Name:  Shellfish Advisory Committee   
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name: Gary Sharpless  
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       
Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    

       Sexual Harassment Select Board #19  
Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement 
Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement  
 
Committee/Commission/Board Name: Shellfish Advisory Committee  
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name:  Jim Sloman  

         (This is a new applicant-all paperwork will be completed before swearing in, if appointed) 
 
 
Committee/Commission/Board Name: Shellfish Advisory Committee 
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name:  Dan Smith 
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       
Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    

       Sexual Harassment Select Board Policy #19 
       Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement   
       Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement 

 

                     Agenda Item: 4B6 

 X 
 X 

 X 

 X 

 X 
 X 

 X 
 X 

X 

X 

X 

X 



Select Board Appointing Authority Checklist                                                                                                      
 

 
 
 

Committee/Commission/Board Name:  Shellfish Advisory Committee   
Committee/Commission/Board Member Name: Mark Wisotzky 
Standards of Professional Conduct signed  
On-Line Ethics Training Completed Certificate’s good for 2 years       
Signed Acknowledgment/Summary of Conflict of Interest Law    

       Sexual Harassment Select Board #19  
Select Board Handbook Acknowledgement 
Open Meeting Law Guide Acknowledgement  

 

 X 
 X 

 X 

 X 

X 

X 



1 
 

        Agenda Item:  7A 

TOWN OF TRURO 

Select Board Agenda Item  
 

BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION:  Select Board    
 
REQUESTOR: Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Discussion, Prioritization and Vote on Select Board FY2024 Goals and Objectives 
 
EXPLANATION: The Board held its Public Hearing to state the Board’s Goals & Objectives for 
the coming fiscal year, review its Goals & Objectives for the concluding year, and review its 
accomplishments relative to those goals on June 27, 2023, in accordance with the Town 
Charter. The Board will consider the public feedback from the meeting and will finalize and 
prioritize the FY2024 Goals & Objectives at tonight’s meeting. 
 
The Board members individually prioritized the objectives and Town Manager Tangeman will 
present the results of the prioritization to the Board. Upon completion of the finalization and 
prioritization, the objectives will be listed in the final draft of the FY2024 Goals & Objectives in 
priority order. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO adopt and electronically sign the Select Board FY2024 Goals 
& Objectives as discussed and prioritized. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. FY2024 Draft Select Board Goals & Objectives Document 
2. FY2024 Draft Objectives List 
3. FY2023 Select Board Goals & Objectives Progress Update 

 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 1 of 6 

Values and 
Fiscal Year 2024 Goals and Objectives  

 
VALUES: 
 
The Town of Truro holds the following values that inform our approach to governance and 
municipal services. They are the guiding principles that drive all of the activities undertaken by 
any staff, volunteer, elected or appointed official in the Town of Truro.  They embody our beliefs 
and our highest aspirations.   
 
Excellence:  
We strive to provide the highest quality services that are responsive to the needs of all residents 
and visitors.   
 
Integrity:  
We hold ourselves to high ethical standards and commit to acting with civility at all times and to 
behave lawfully, respectfully, honestly and fairly.   
 
Openness and Transparency:  
We commit to sharing information, working inclusively and to holding ourselves accountable.   
 
Collaboration: 
We believe in working with others to solve problems and address community need both locally 
and regionally. 
 
Sustainability: 
We strive for the integration of environmental health and protection, social equity and diversity, 
economic vitality, and fiscal integrity of the community to create a thriving and resilient 
community for generations to come. 
 
 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 
 
Each year, as a way of articulating policy and priorities, the Truro Select Board develops goals 
and objectives.  These goals and objectives are intended to prioritize the Select Board’s efforts 
and to provide guidance and direction to the Town Manager and their appointees, the Police and 
Fire Chiefs, and the Town’s multi-member bodies.  
 
In accordance with Town Charter, the Select Board held a public meeting on June 27, 2023. The 
Board also determined that the FY2023 objectives would serve as the basis for the FY2024 

Agenda Item: 7A1

DRAFT



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 2 of 6 

objectives, with some modifications and new objectives, at the regular Select Board meeting on 
June 13, 2023. On [[DATE]], the Select Board finalized and prioritized the FY2024 Goals & 
Objectives for July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. The objectives identified may contribute to 
the eventual completion of one goal or of multiple goals and are labeled to demonstrate the goals 
targeted by specific objectives.  
 
FY2024 Goals 
 
The Town of Truro will support policies and programs that: 
 

A) foster sustainable and appropriate economic development. 
B) create more affordable year-round places for people to live and work. 
C) protect and restore our fragile environment. 
D) use long term and strategic planning to guarantee the future health and well-being of our 

community. 
E) proactively engage and involve the town residents, property and business owners. 

 
 
FY2024 Objectives 
The following objectives are presented in order of priority and a Select Board Ambassador was 
identified for each objective.  
 

[[TO BE LISTED IN PRIORITIZED ORDER]] 
 

To maintain vital EMS services on the Outer Cape the Select Board will support a 
workplan and synchronized transition plan to include 1) establish a plan and timeline for 
the Town to provide EMS services without the auxiliary support of Lower Cape with the 
support of a consultant; 2) hire the four paramedics approved at Annual Town Meeting; 
3) collaborate with Lower Cape Ambulance Association and Provincetown to meet the 
plan and timeline and prepare a contract that will facilitate this plan and timeline; 4) 
evaluate potential areas for regionalization. 

Goals Addressed: D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Robert Weinstein  

 
 

The Select Board will direct staff to apply for ARPA funds for the Broadband Needs 
Assessment Study by October 1, 2022. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 
 

DRAFT



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 3 of 6 

The Select Board will review all Town owned land to assess possibilities for municipal 
use, housing, economic development, open space, water, and/or possible disposition to be 
completed by October 1, 2022. 

Goals Addressed: A, B 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 

 
 

The Select Board will support and encourage projects that protect and restore our coastal 
environment including these current and ongoing projects:  

• Pamet River Tidal Flow Restoration and Watershed Study 
• East Harbor Culvert Replacement 
• Mill Pond and Eagle Creek Repairs and Improvement 
• Little Pamet Watershed Study and Culvert Repair 
• Coastal Management 

Goals Addressed: C 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 

 
 

The Select Board will work with the Walsh Property Community Planning Committee and 
the Local Comprehensive Plan Committee to build on areas of common ground and build 
consensus on the specific initiatives and a more general vision for Truro with special 
consideration of the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan. 

Goals Addressed: A, B, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson  
 

 
The Select Board will work with the Housing Authority and the Housing Consultant to 
develop a Housing Playbook by June 30, 2023. 

Goals Addressed: A, B, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 

 
 

Upon completion of the Local Comprehensive Plan, the Select Board and Town Manager 
will work jointly to create a Town mission statement. 

Goals Addressed: D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 
 
 
 

 

DRAFT



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 4 of 6 

The Select Board will provide support to and collaborate with the Climate Action 
Committee and the Energy Committee on the goals of creating a Climate Action Plan for 
the Town of Truro, and researching the hiring of a Climate Action Agent, as well as to 
work with the Climate Action Committee to develop a policy memorandum that facilitates 
and guides progress in all relevant areas toward a “Net Zero Truro” by 2050, and will 
ask for updates at least twice per year. The Board will also revise the charges of the 
Energy Committee and the Climate Action Committee to incorporate the directives from 
Article 53 of the 2022 Annual Town Meeting. 

Goals Addressed: A, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 

 
 
The Select Board will submit a letter each to the Planning Board and the Economic 
Development Committee by December 31, 2022 outlining the Select Board’s priorities in 
housing, zoning, land use and economic development in an effort facilitate collaboration 
and joint efforts.   

Goals Addressed: A, B, C 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

 
 

The Select Board will review the Senior Needs Assessment, invite feedback from the 
community on specific programs and services requested, and explore the feasibility and 
the cost and social impact of expanding services and programs for seniors to inform the 
FY2025 budget process. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 
 
 

A Needs Assessment for Persons with Disabilities will be conducted, the Select Board will 
invite feedback from the community on specific programs and services requested, and will 
explore the feasibility and the cost and social impact of expanding services and programs 
for persons with disabilities to inform the FY2025 budget process.**Collaboration with 
the objective related to the Senior Needs Assessment would be beneficial as there may be 
overlap between needs or between populations. 

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: Stephanie Rein 
 

 
The Select Board will hold joint work sessions with participation from the Truro Housing 
Authority, Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals to develop housing initiatives 
that will diversify the range of seasonal, year-round and transitional housing for people 

DRAFT



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 5 of 6 

of varying income levels and will develop related articles for the 2023 Annual Town 
Meeting.  The Select Board will provide an update on these efforts at least semi-annually. 

Goals Addressed: B, D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 

 
 

The Select Board will initiate a revised cost estimate of a multi-phased approach for a 
new Department of Public Works Facility at a yet to be determined site in the FY2024- 
FY2028 Capital Improvement Plan. By December 31, 2022, the Town Manager will work 
with the Public Works Director to welcome the public to site visits of the current Public 
Works Facility via in-person visits and virtual visits.  

Goals Addressed: D 
Select Board Ambassador: Robert Weinstein 

 
 

The Select Board will promote the Local Comprehensive Planning Committee and 
process along with the work of the Economic Development Committee and encourage 
community participation and will provide regular updates. 

Goals Addressed: A, D 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 
 

 
The Select Board will rework, update and set clearer objectives in Policy 54 and Policy 
31, and will work to enhance compliance.  

Goals Addressed: E 
Select Board Ambassador: Susan Areson 

 
 

Through the Town of Truro representatives and in concert with the Provincetown Water & 
Sewer Board, the Select Board will support intermunicipal collaboration to determine 
safe yield estimates for the purpose of developing a water resources management 
plan.  In addition, invite current/future stakeholders & intermunicipal staff to more 
frequent (2x per year) Select Board updates to discuss shared planning, future water 
supply protection, and for development of new source(s).  

Goals Addressed: A, C, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

 
 

The Select Board will provide resources in the FY2023 budget to increase the digitization 
of town services and records, and address cybersecurity and will lay the groundwork for 
a five-year digitization and cyber security plan that will be initiated in FY2024. The 

DRAFT



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
                                                                               
 

      

  Page 6 of 6 

Select Board Ambassador working with the Town Manager and IT Director will provide 
an outline to present at a Select Board meeting prior to beginning the FY2024 Budget 
Process.  

Goals Addressed: A, D, E 
Select Board Ambassador: John Dundas 

 
 

The Select Board will task the Economic Development Committee with inviting the 
Massachusetts Cultural Council to present to the Select Board, Economic Development 
Committee and the Truro Cultural Council on the process of creating a designated 
cultural district in Truro. 

Goals Addressed: A 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 
 
 

The Select Board will appoint a task force of local experts and staff and two members of 
the Select Board to examine recurrent revenue generation options resulting in a detailed 
report and recommendations for both short-term and long-term implementation to the 
Select Board by April 1, 2024. 

Goals Addressed: A, B 
Select Board Ambassador: Kristen Reed 
 

 
Truro Select Board 

 
 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 
Kristen Reed, Chair      Susan Areson, Vice-Chair 

 
 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
John Dundas, Clerk      Robert Weinstein 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Stephanie Rein 

DRAFT



Obj # Objective
Goal(s) 

Addressed
Select Board 
Ambassador Present Status Next Steps

To maintain vital EMS services on the Outer Cape the Select Board 
will support a workplan and synchronized transition plan to include 
1) establish a plan and timeline for the Town to provide EMS 
services without the auxiliary support of Lower Cape with the 
support of a consultant; 2) hire the four paramedics approved at 
Annual Town Meeting; 3) collaborate with Lower Cape Ambulance 
Association and Provincetown to meet the plan and timeline and 
prepare a contract that will facilitate this plan and timeline; 4) 
evaluate potential areas for regionalization.

D, E
Robert 
Weinstein

Override presented for (4) firefighter/ paramedics at 2022 Town Meeting and Town Election ballot.  Study complete. 
Report presented at April 12, 2022 Select Board Meeting. Staff members are meeting regular with Provincetown staff 
members and members of Lower Cape Ambulance to identify short- and long- term transition plans.
NEW: Staff prepared a plan and timeline for implementing an EMS model without the auxillary support of Lower Cape 
and crafted three related Town Meeting articles. All three articles passed at Town Meeting and the override for (4) 
new firefighter/paramedics and (1) EMS Administrator passed at the ballot. The plan and articles included short-term, 
transitional, and long-term plans, with an eye toward addressing recruitment challenges. Three new employees have 
been hired this quarter and interviews are underway for the other openings. The Communications & Marketing 
Coordinator is coordinating recruitment efforts. 
Staff has met regularly with LCAA and Provincetown and will bring a contract and three-entity agreement forward at 
the June 27, 2023 meeting for short-term supplemental ALS support. Collective Bargaining Agreement with Truro 
Permanent Firefighters successfully negotiated, resulting in key incentives for encouraging existing staff to obtain 
paramedic certification and to recruit candidates. Travelling Paramedics will be used to provide supplemental support 
during transition.

ONGOING

Next steps include: 
Continued recruitment, onboarding, and 
training.
Approval of LCAA Contract and Inter-Agency 
Agreement at June 27, 2023 SB Meeting.
Approval of Traveling Paramedic Contract 
and implementing travelling paramedic 
program.

The Select Board will direct staff to apply for ARPA funds for the 
Broadband Needs Assessment Study by October 1, 2022.

A, D, E John Dundas
NEW: Staff presented to the Board on this in June 2022. Staff solicited a consultant and has a quote available. ARPA 
funds of the initial ARPA allotment are available to fund the needs assessment. 

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Engage Cable & Internet Advisory Committee 
on the Needs Assessment.
Town Manager to authorize contract with 
consultant.
Consultant to conduct Needs Assessment.
Consultant to report results at a future joint 
meeting between the Select Board and the 
Cable & Internet Advisory Committee.

The Select Board will review all Town owned land to assess 
possibilities for municipal use, housing, economic development, 
open space, water, and/or possible disposition to be completed by 
October 1, 2022.
(CONTINUED)

A, B Kristen Reed

The Select Board held a work session to discuss the use of Town-owned land in August and then voted in a regular 
meeting to designate 25 South Highland Road for permanent placement of Town-owned structures for the purpose of 
Town employee housing and to begin a master planning process for 0 Quail Ridge Road. In September, the Board 
voted to commit $433,824 of Affordable Housing Trust Funds for the purpose of moving Town-owned and donated 
housing structures to 25 South Highland Road and to authorize the Town Manager to initiate the relocation of the 
structures. 

NEW: Staff secured $900,000 to move existing dwellings to 25 South Highland Road. Bid for moving dwellings 
complete. SB will consider Town-owned parcels that should be transferred to CCNS as part of the required land 
exchange at the June 13, 2023 meeting.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
Continue to prioritize needs and identify 
which potential Town-owned parcels could 
meet said needs.

Agenda Item: 7A2

DRAFT



The Select Board will support and encourage projects that protect 
and restore our coastal environment including these current and 
ongoing projects: 
A) Pamet River Tidal Flow Restoration and Watershed Study
B) East Harbor Culvert Replacement
C) Mill Pond and Eagle Creek Repairs and Improvement
D) Little Pamet Watershed Study and Culvert Repair
E) Coastal Management
(CONTINUED)

C
Stephanie 
Rein

NEW:
A-D) Updates on environmental projects are provided by the DPW Director during the staff updates portion of Select 
Board meetings periodically. 
Highlight:  Eagle Neck Creek Bridge reopened on 10/7/22, post project environmetal monoring will continue through 
2027.   East Harbor culvert replacment has beeen completed, post project environmental monitoring will continue 
through 2027.  Mill Pond culvert replacment is in the final design and permitting phase.  Construction for Mill Pond is a 
minimum of two years away.  Pamet River restoration, and little Pamet watershed study and culvert replacement 
projects  are in the preliminary design and addtional modeling phase.  All Pamet River related projects will move 
forward togther, and are funded by NOAA.                         
E) The final project report for the Outer Cape project “increasing coastal resiliency through Intermunicipal Shoreline 
management” was issued by the Center for Coastal Studies on June 14, 2022.  Deliverables for phase 2 include 
assessment to identify locations for potential salt-marsh migration; an inventory of the low lying roads in the 4 town 
project area; development of a regional sand banking database; and, development of management  approach for the 
littoral cells of our shoreline; each of these topics were developed as an interactive geospatial dataset in the Regional 
Shoreline Management geodatabase. In spring of 2022, the CCS held 3 public outreach sessions about the underlying 
processes that drive coastal change.The Outer Cape towns are partnering with the  Center for Coastal Studies to 
continue the Shorefront Management project and have submitted an application for a third CZM Coastal Resiliency 
grant.   The municipal staff team continues to look for other grant sources to develop the organizational framework for 
the management plan itself.

ONGOING

These are long-term projects with design, 
planning, contruction and monitoring 
requirements that require multiple 
month/year timelines.

Public Works Director Cabral and Health/ 
Conservation Agent Beebe continue to 
monitor and move forward these projects.

The Select Board will work with the Walsh Property Community 
Planning Committee and the Local Comprehensive Plan Committee 
to build on areas of common ground and build consensus on the 
specific initiatives and a more general vision for Truro with special 
consideration of the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing 
Production Plan.

A, B, C, D, E Susan Areson

The Talk to Us, Truro Community Survey culminated in a joint meeting to review the survey results in April, which was 
very productive and collaborative. Staff anticipates that chairs of LCP, WPCPC, EDC, and Housing Authority will work 
together in some capacity moving forward. The Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan are expected 
to be complete this fall.

NEW: The Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan are complete and were presented to the Select 
Board, Planning Board and Conservation Commission. Final votes to adopt are needed by the Planning Board and the 
Select Board.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Once the Housing Production Plan is 
adopted, a 2-step process is proposed:
1) The Board liaisons to the LCPC and WPCPC 
should meet with the chairs of WPCPC, LCPC 
and Housing Authority to outline 
recommendations.
2) A work session could be held to discuss the 
recommendations with the full SB and 
representatives of WPCPC, Housing Authority 
and LCPC.
3) LCP and Walsh Plans are expected to be 
considered at 2023 Fall Special Town 
Meeting.

The Select Board will work with the Housing Authority and the 
Housing Consultant to develop a Housing Playbook by June 30, 2023

A, B, D, E Kristen Reed

Preliminary discussions held to determine if the Playbook could be included as part of the Housing Needs Assessment 
that is being prepared by the consultant.

NEW: The Consultant who prepared the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan was contacted to 
discuss the scope of work related to developing a housing playbook. A quote and general scope of work and associated 
timeline was provided but will need further detail to ensure the Playbook adequately addresses this objective. Upon 
finalizing this scope of work, the project will take approximately 3 months to complete.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Finalizing scope of work
Entering into contract with consultant

Upon completion of the Local Comprehensive Plan, the Select Board 
and Town Manager will work jointly to create a Town mission 
statement. (Continued into FY2023)
(CONTINUED)

D Susan Areson Pending completion of the LCP.

ONGOING

Begin process in winter/spring 2023 (LCP to 
go to 2023 Annual Town Meeting)

DRAFT



The Select Board will provide support to and collaborate with the 
Climate Action Committee and the Energy Committee in the 
creation of a Climate Action Plan for the Town of Truro, as well as 
to work with the Climate Action Committee to develop a policy 
memorandum that facilitates and guides progress in all relevant 
areas toward a “Net Zero Truro” by 2050, and will ask for updates 
at least twice per year. The Board will also revise the charges of the 
Energy Committee and the Climate Action Committee to 
incorporate the directives from Article 53 of the 2022 Annual Town 
Meeting.

A, C, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

A Work Session with the CAC was held on October 8, 2021. The CAC drafted a list of objectives from the Workshop.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Work with CAC to draft a policy 
memorandum that will be presented to the 
Select Board for review and discussion. 
Draft revised charges of CAC and EC to 
include directives from Article 53.

The Select Board will submit a letter each to the Planning Board 
and the Economic Development Committee by December 31, 2022 
outlining the Select Board’s priorities in housing, zoning, land use 
and economic development in an effort facilitate collaboration and 
joint efforts.
(CONTINUED)

A, B, C John Dundas
NEW: Member Dundas presented a draft letter to the Select Board in December 2022. The Board determined that 
they would like to re-visit the letter in June so that it could be sent in July 2023.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Further discussion among the Board to 
determine consensus on the Board's 
priorities and what should be included in the 
letter.
Draft revised letter(s) and present to Select 
Board.
Send letter(s) to appropriate boards

The Select Board will review the Senior Needs Assessment, invite 
feedback from the community on specific programs and services 
requested, and explore the feasibility and the cost and social impact 
of expanding services and programs for seniors to inform the 
FY2025 budget process.

A, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

NEW: Community Services Deputy Director: Council on Aging and Outreach Coordinator were hired. Recruitment still 
underway for Office Assistant position.

ONGOING

Ambassador and Deputy Director will each 
review existing Senior Needs Assessment and 
programming and will determine if an 
updated assessment should be completed, 
and will then work with the COA Board to 
move this objective forward.

N
EW

!

A Needs Assessment for Persons with Disabilities will be conducted, 
the Select Board will invite feedback from the community on 
specific programs and services requested, and will explore the 
feasibility and the cost and social impact of expanding services and 
programs for persons with disabilities to inform the FY2025 budget 
process.

**Collaboration with the objective related to the Senior Needs 
Assessment would be beneficial as there may be overlap between 
needs or between populations.

A, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

U
PD

AT
ED

 P
RO

G
RE

SS
 R

EP
O

RT
/N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S

The Select Board will hold joint work sessions with participation 
from the Truro Housing Authority, Planning Board and Zoning 
Board of Appeals to develop housing initiatives that will diversify 
the range of seasonal, year-round and transitional housing for 
people of varying income levels and will develop related articles for 
the 2023 Annual Town Meeting.  The Select Board will provide an 
update on these efforts at least semi-annually. 

B, D Susan Areson

Ambassador Areson and representatives from the ZBA, Planning Board and Housing Authority met six times since 
August 2022 with the town planner/land use counsel, with the town manager attending the first session. The group 
created a spreadsheet of ideas for expanding housing opportunities and set priorities. After the last meeting, in 
February 2023, the group decided to wait until after Town Meeting to reconvene because of the request for a housing 
coordinator.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
The ad hoc group will reconvene and revise 
its list of actions, based on Town Meeting 
decisions and expected action at the Special 
Town Meeting in October.

DRAFT



The Select Board will initiate a revised cost estimate of a multi-
phased approach for a new Department of Public Works Facility at 
a yet to be determined site in the FY2024- FY2028 Capital 
Improvement Plan. By December 31, 2022, the Town Manager will 
work with the Public Works Director to welcome the public to site 
visits of the current Public Works Facility via in-person visits and 
virtual visits.

D
Robert 
Weinstein

NEW: Staff secured revised cost estimates and presented on three locations to the Select Board.  Two open house 
visits have been held for the public, and a cost analyisis comparing four sites has been completed. Staff has solicited 
consultants to complete a peer review of the cost estimates. More open houses have been scheduled and a virtual 
open house is expected in July.  

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Review Peer Review results
Pursue next steps identified by Director 
Cabral at May 23, 2023 SB Meeting

The Select Board will promote the Local Comprehensive Planning 
Committee and process along with the work of the Economic 
Development Committee and encourage community participation 
and will provide regular updates.
(CONTINUED)

A, D Susan Areson

Ambassador regularly attends meetings of the LCPC and EDC and provides updates. The Talk to Us Truro Community 
Survey was completed and results presented to the groups. An Economic Development Committee Economic Summit 
was held on June 16, 2022 and forums targetting different sectors of the economy were held. The LCPC prepared and 
is distributing postcards for more public feedback. An in-person forum was held on Oct. 15. 

NEW: LCPC work is on track to present LCP to 2023 Special Town Meeting. Economic Development Committee's 
Report is complete and will be presented at June 13, 2023 Select Board meeting.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Ambassador to continue current efforts.
Select Board will vote to adopt the Economic 
Development Committee's report (target 
date: June 27, 2023).
LCP to be approved at 2023 Fall Special Town 
Meeting.

The Select Board will rework, update and set clearer objectives in 
Policy 54 and Policy 31, and will work to enhance compliance.
(CONTINUED)

E Susan Areson Preliminary discussions held at Board Meetings. In progress.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Ambassador will finalize the draft revised 
policies for consideration by the Board and 
the Board can work to identify potential ways 
to increase compliance. 

U
PD

AT
ED

 O
BJ

EC
TI

VE Through the Town of Truro representatives and in concert with the 
Provincetown Water & Sewer Board, the Select Board will support 
intermunicipal collaboration to determine safe yield estimates for 
the purpose of developing a water resources management plan.  In 
addition, invite current/future stakeholders & intermunicipal staff to 
more frequent (2x per year) Select Board updates to discuss shared 
planning, future water supply protection, and for development of 
new source(s)

A, C, D, E John Dundas

Ambassador appointed to Provincetown Water & Sewer Board. Joint Water Meeting scheduled for October 24, 2022. 
Staff of Provincetown and Truro have started meeting to discuss capacity and planning to build capacity for the 
municipal  water line.

NEW: Truro and Provincetown held a joint water meeting on October 24, 2023 to discuss short-, medium- and long-
term water demands of both towns; to receive the Provincetown Water Department's Report; and to hear Water 
Resources Consultant Scott Horsley's Report on Recharge and Watershed. Additionally, in November 2022, a reserve 
fund transfer was approved and the Select Board approved participation in an analysis of Provincetown and Truro's 
future water demand.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
Receiving the water demand analysis.
Ambassador may wish to begin to draft 
objectives/ steps to help encourage full cycle 
water usage. 

The Select Board will provide resources in the FY2023 budget to 
increase the digitization of town services and records, and address 
cybersecurity and will lay the groundwork for a five-year digitization 
and cyber security plan that will be initiated in FY2024. The Select 
Board Ambassador working with the Town Manager and IT Director 
will provide an outline to present at a Select Board meeting prior to 
beginning the FY2024 Budget Process.

A, D, E John Dundas

Town Clerk Fullerton submitted grants for digitization and records storage to the CPC and the Community Compact 
Grant Program. Digitization efforts included in the 2022 Annual Town Meeting Warrant: Clerk/ Planning record 
digitization, additional financial transparency and budgeting software modules, building permit software, and CPA 
request for digitizing Town records.

NEW: The FY2024 Budget Process is complete and included funding for some new digitization efforts. The budget 
process also included a pilot effort for creating departmental budgets in the new budget module of the Town's 
financial transparancy software.  The digitization of Clerk/ Planning records is on hold while a new Town Clerk is 
recruited. The procurement process was completed and the next step will be to finalize contract terms and identify 
priority records.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Implementation of the digitization projects 
already funded.
Tasking department heads with identifying 
department functions that are digitized and 
prioritizing areas that should be digitized in 
the future to develop the five-year plan.
Creating a template for the 5-year plan.

The Select Board will task the Economic Development Committee 
with inviting the Massachusetts Cultural Council to present to the 
Select Board, Economic Development Committee and the Truro 
Cultural Council on the process of creating a designated cultural 
district in Truro. (Continued into FY2023)

A Kristen Reed
Town Planner Carboni, Member Areson and Chair Reed have been communicating with the EDC and the 
Massachusetts Cultural Council and are reviewing the materials provided by the MCC. An MCC representative visited 
Truro to get a visual of the area that may be considered to be designated as a cultural district.

ONGOING

Next steps include: 
Identifying a meeting date for a presentation 
by a representative of MCC, or by Town staff 
or a member of the EDC, on designated 
cultural districts.

DRAFT



N
EW

!

The Select Board will appoint a task force of local experts and staff 
and two members of the Select Board to examine recurrent revenue 
generation options resulting in a detailed report and 
recommendations for both short-term and long-term 
implementation to the Select Board by April 1, 2024. 

A, B Kristen Reed

DRAFT



Obj # Objective
Goal(s) 

Addressed
Select Board 
Ambassador Present Status Next Steps

1

To maintain vital EMS services on the Outer Cape the Select Board 
will support a workplan and synchronized transition plan to include 
1) establish a plan and timeline for the Town to provide EMS 
services without the auxiliary support of Lower Cape with the 
support of a consultant; 2) hire the four paramedics approved at 
Annual Town Meeting; 3) collaborate with Lower Cape Ambulance 
Association and Provincetown to meet the plan and timeline and 
prepare a contract that will facilitate this plan and timeline; 4) 
evaluate potential areas for regionalization.

D, E
Robert 
Weinstein

Override presented for (4) firefighter/ paramedics at 2022 Town Meeting and Town Election ballot.  Study complete. 
Report presented at April 12, 2022 Select Board Meeting. Staff members are meeting regular with Provincetown staff 
members and members of Lower Cape Ambulance to identify short- and long- term transition plans.
NEW: Staff prepared a plan and timeline for implementing an EMS model without the auxillary support of Lower Cape 
and crafted three related Town Meeting articles. All three articles passed at Town Meeting and the override for (4) 
new firefighter/paramedics and (1) EMS Administrator passed at the ballot. The plan and articles included short-term, 
transitional, and long-term plans, with an eye toward addressing recruitment challenges. Three new employees have 
been hired this quarter and interviews are underway for the other openings. The Communications & Marketing 
Coordinator is coordinating recruitment efforts. 
Staff has met regularly with LCAA and Provincetown and will bring a contract and three-entity agreement forward at 
the June 27, 2023 meeting for short-term supplemental ALS support. Collective Bargaining Agreement with Truro 
Permanent Firefighters successfully negotiated, resulting in key incentives for encouraging existing staff to obtain 
paramedic certification and to recruit candidates. Travelling Paramedics will be used to provide supplemental support 
during transition.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include: 
Continued recruitment, onboarding, and 
training.
Approval of LCAA Contract and Inter-Agency 
Agreement at June 27, 2023 SB Meeting.
Approval of Traveling Paramedic Contract 
and implementing travelling paramedic 
program.

2
The Select Board will direct staff to apply for ARPA funds for the 
Broadband Needs Assessment Study by October 1, 2022.

A, D, E John Dundas
NEW: Staff presented to the Board on this in June 2022. Staff solicited a consultant and has a quote available. ARPA 
funds of the initial ARPA allotment are available to fund the needs assessment. 

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Engage Cable & Internet Advisory Committee 
on the Needs Assessment.
Town Manager to authorize contract with 
consultant.
Consultant to conduct Needs Assessment.
Consultant to report results at a future joint 
meeting between the Select Board and the 
Cable & Internet Advisory Committee.

3

The Select Board will review all Town owned land to assess 
possibilities for municipal use, housing, economic development, 
open space, and/or possible disposition to be completed by October 
1, 2022.
(CONTINUED)

A, B Kristen Reed

The Select Board held a work session to discuss the use of Town-owned land in August and then voted in a regular 
meeting to designate 25 South Highland Road for permanent placement of Town-owned structures for the purpose of 
Town employee housing and to begin a master planning process for 0 Quail Ridge Road. In September, the Board 
voted to commit $433,824 of Affordable Housing Trust Funds for the purpose of moving Town-owned and donated 
housing structures to 25 South Highland Road and to authorize the Town Manager to initiate the relocation of the 
structures. 

NEW: Staff secured $900,000 to move existing dwellings to 25 South Highland Road. Bid for moving dwellings 
complete. SB will consider Town-owned parcels that should be transferred to CCNS as part of the required land 
exchange at the June 13, 2023 meeting.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
Continue to prioritize needs and identify 
which potential Town-owned parcels could 
meet said needs.

4

The Select Board will review the efficacy of and the participation in 
the childcare voucher program by November 30, 2022 and will 
make recommendations for the 2023 Annual Town Meeting and the 
FY2024 budget process By December 31, 2022.

A, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

Voucher Program administration procured and first half applications are currently being accepted. The deadline to 
apply for the first half funds is October 31, 2022. After the first half application period is closed and applications are 
processed and approved, the administrator will provide a report.

NEW: Program Administrator provided update on success of the FY23 program. Town Meeting override and ballot 
question for community sustainability programs passed making program permanent. Staff is presenting eligibility 
requirements for SB approval at June 13, 2023 meeting and will solicit a program administrator upon approval.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
SB approval of eligibility requirements at 
June 13, 2023 meeting
Solicitation of program administrator
Advertisement of program and application 
deadlines
Fielding and forwarding of applications

Agenda Item: 7A3



5

The Select Board will support and encourage projects that protect 
and restore our coastal environment including these current and 
ongoing projects: 
A) Pamet River Tidal Flow Restoration and Watershed Study
B) East Harbor Culvert Replacement
C) Mill Pond and Eagle Creek Repairs and Improvement
D) Little Pamet Watershed Study and Culvert Repair
E) Coastal Management
(CONTINUED)

C
Stephanie 
Rein

NEW:
A-D) Updates on environmental projects are provided by the DPW Director during the staff updates portion of Select 
Board meetings periodically. 
Highlight:  Eagle Neck Creek Bridge reopened on 10/7/22, post project environmetal monoring will continue through 
2027.   East Harbor culvert replacment has beeen completed, post project environmental monitoring will continue 
through 2027.  Mill Pond culvert replacment is in the final design and permitting phase.  Construction for Mill Pond is a 
minimum of two years away.  Pamet River restoration, and little Pamet watershed study and culvert replacement 
projects  are in the preliminary design and addtional modeling phase.  All Pamet River related projects will move 
forward togther, and are funded by NOAA.                         
E) The final project report for the Outer Cape project “increasing coastal resiliency through Intermunicipal Shoreline 
management” was issued by the Center for Coastal Studies on June 14, 2022.  Deliverables for phase 2 include 
assessment to identify locations for potential salt-marsh migration; an inventory of the low lying roads in the 4 town 
project area; development of a regional sand banking database; and, development of management  approach for the 
littoral cells of our shoreline; each of these topics were developed as an interactive geospatial dataset in the Regional 
Shoreline Management geodatabase. In spring of 2022, the CCS held 3 public outreach sessions about the underlying 
processes that drive coastal change.The Outer Cape towns are partnering with the  Center for Coastal Studies to 
continue the Shorefront Management project and have submitted an application for a third CZM Coastal Resiliency 
grant.   The municipal staff team continues to look for other grant sources to develop the organizational framework for 
the management plan itself.

ONGOING

These are long-term projects with design, 
planning, contruction and monitoring 
requirements that require multiple 
month/year timelines.

Public Works Director Cabral and Health/ 
Conservation Agent Beebe continue to 
monitor and move forward these projects.

6

To improve Town employee recruitment and retention the Select 
Board will implement and integrate the findings of the 
comprehensive compensation analysis and enter into associated 
Collective Bargaining Agreement negotiation and Non-union 
personnel reclassifications.

A, D Kristen Reed

Analysis is complete and will be presented at the end of June 2022. Implementation plans and CBA negotiations are in 
progress.

NEW: Classification and Compensation Study is finalized and implemented with all four collective bargaining units as 
part of negotiations. All four agreements have been ratified. Implementation of new pay schedules for union and non-
union personnel is substantially complete.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
Implementation of FY24 rates and cost-of-
living increase will be implemented July 1, 
2024.

7

The Select Board will work with the Walsh Property Community 
Planning Committee and the Local Comprehensive Plan Committee 
to build on areas of common ground and build consensus on the 
specific initiatives and a more general vision for Truro with special 
consideration of the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing 
Production Plan.

A, B, C, D, E Susan Areson

The Talk to Us, Truro Community Survey culminated in a joint meeting to review the survey results in April, which was 
very productive and collaborative. Staff anticipates that chairs of LCP, WPCPC, EDC, and Housing Authority will work 
together in some capacity moving forward. The Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan are expected 
to be complete this fall.

NEW: The Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan are complete and were presented to the Select 
Board, Planning Board and Conservation Commission. Final votes to adopt are needed by the Planning Board and the 
Select Board.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Once the Housing Production Plan is 
adopted, a 2-step process is proposed:
1) The Board liaisons to the LCPC and WPCPC 
should meet with the chairs of WPCPC, LCPC 
and Housing Authority to outline 
recommendations.
2) A work session could be held to discuss the 
recommendations with the full SB and 
representatives of WPCPC, Housing Authority 
and LCPC.
3) LCP and Walsh Plans are expected to be 
considered at 2023 Fall Special Town 
Meeting.

8
The Select Board will work with the Housing Authority and the 
Housing Consultant to develop a Housing Playbook by June 30, 2023

A, B, D, E Kristen Reed

Preliminary discussions held to determine if the Playbook could be included as part of the Housing Needs Assessment 
that is being prepared by the consultant.

NEW: The Consultant who prepared the Housing Needs Assessment and Housing Production Plan was contacted to 
discuss the scope of work related to developing a housing playbook. A quote and general scope of work and associated 
timeline was provided but will need further detail to ensure the Playbook adequately addresses this objective. Upon 
finalizing this scope of work, the project will take approximately 3 months to complete.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Finalizing scope of work
Entering into contract with consultant

9

Upon completion of the Local Comprehensive Plan, the Select Board 
and Town Manager will work jointly to create a Town mission 
statement. (Continued into FY2023)
(CONTINUED)

D Susan Areson Pending completion of the LCP.

ONGOING

Begin process in winter/spring 2023 (LCP to 
go to 2023 Annual Town Meeting)



10

The Select Board will provide support to and collaborate with the 
Climate Action Committee and the Energy Committee in the 
creation of a Climate Action Plan for the Town of Truro, as well as 
to work with the Climate Action Committee to develop a policy 
memorandum that facilitates and guides progress in all relevant 
areas toward a “Net Zero Truro” by 2050, and will ask for updates 
at least twice per year. The Board will also revise the charges of the 
Energy Committee and the Climate Action Committee to 
incorporate the directives from Article 53 of the 2022 Annual Town 
Meeting.

A, C, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

A Work Session with the CAC was held on October 8, 2021. The CAC drafted a list of objectives from the Workshop.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Work with CAC to draft a policy 
memorandum that will be presented to the 
Select Board for review and discussion. 
Draft revised charges of CAC and EC to 
include directives from Article 53.

11

The Select Board will submit a letter each to the Planning Board 
and the Economic Development Committee by December 31, 2022 
outlining the Select Board’s priorities in housing, zoning, land use 
and economic development in an effort facilitate collaboration and 
joint efforts.
(CONTINUED)

A, B, C John Dundas
NEW: Member Dundas presented a draft letter to the Select Board in December 2022. The Board determined that 
they would like to re-visit the letter in June so that it could be sent in July 2023.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Further discussion among the Board to 
determine consensus on the Board's 
priorities and what should be included in the 
letter.
Draft revised letter(s) and present to Select 
Board.
Send letter(s) to appropriate boards

12

The Select Board will review the Senior Needs Assessment, invite 
feedback from the community on specific programs and services 
requested, and explore the feasibility and the cost and social impact 
of expanding services and programs for seniors to inform the 
FY2024 budget process. (Continued into FY2023)
CONTINUED

A, D, E
Stephanie 
Rein

NEW: Community Services Deputy Director: Council on Aging and Outreach Coordinator were hired. Recruitment still 
underway for Office Assistant position.

ONGOING

Ambassador and Deputy Director will each 
review existing Senior Needs Assessment and 
programming and will determine if an 
updated assessment should be completed, 
and will then work with the COA Board to 
move this objective forward.

13

The Select Board will hold joint work sessions with participation 
from the Truro Housing Authority, Planning Board and Zoning 
Board of Appeals to develop housing initiatives that will diversify 
the range of seasonal, year-round and transitional housing for 
people of varying income levels and will develop related articles for 
the 2023 Annual Town Meeting.  The Select Board will provide an 
update on these efforts at least semi-annually. 

B, D Susan Areson

A round table session was led by Ambassador Areson in March that included the chairs of the Planning Board, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals, and the Truro Housing Authority, plus the Town Manager and the Town Planner/ Land Use 
Counsel. The group determined the framework for collaboration in the future and met a second time in this fiscal year 
and discussed ideas for expanding housing availability.  

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Convening joint meetings or round table 
group to prepare articles.

14

The Select Board will initiate a revised cost estimate of a multi-
phased approach for a new Department of Public Works Facility at 
a yet to be determined site in the FY2024- FY2028 Capital 
Improvement Plan. By December 31, 2022, the Town Manager will 
work with the Public Works Director to welcome the public to site 
visits of the current Public Works Facility via in-person visits and 
virtual visits.

D
Robert 
Weinstein

NEW: Staff secured revised cost estimates and presented on three locations to the Select Board.  Two open house 
visits have been held for the public, and a cost analyisis comparing four sites has been completed. Staff has solicited 
consultants to complete a peer review of the cost estimates. More open houses have been scheduled and a virtual 
open house is expected in July.  

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Review Peer Review results
Pursue next steps identified by Director 
Cabral at May 23, 2023 SB Meeting

15

The Select Board will promote the Local Comprehensive Planning 
Committee and process along with the work of the Economic 
Development Committee and encourage community participation 
and will provide regular updates.
(CONTINUED)

A, D Susan Areson

Ambassador regularly attends meetings of the LCPC and EDC and provides updates. The Talk to Us Truro Community 
Survey was completed and results presented to the groups. An Economic Development Committee Economic Summit 
was held on June 16, 2022 and forums targetting different sectors of the economy were held. The LCPC prepared and 
is distributing postcards for more public feedback. An in-person forum was held on Oct. 15. 

NEW: LCPC work is on track to present LCP to 2023 Special Town Meeting. Economic Development Committee's 
Report is complete and will be presented at June 13, 2023 Select Board meeting.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Ambassador to continue current efforts.
Select Board will vote to adopt the Economic 
Development Committee's report (target 
date: June 27, 2023).
LCP to be approved at 2023 Fall Special Town 
Meeting.



16
The Select Board will rework, update and set clearer objectives in 
Policy 54 and Policy 31, and will work to enhance compliance.
(CONTINUED)

E Susan Areson Preliminary discussions held at Board Meetings. In progress.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Ambassador will finalize the draft revised 
policies for consideration by the Board and 
the Board can work to identify potential ways 
to increase compliance. 

17

Through the Town of Truro representatives to the Provincetown 
Water & Sewer Board, the Select Board will encourage steps toward 
full cycle water usage for Provincetown and Truro, and a status 
report will be given at least annually at the Select Boards’ joint 
meeting. The Town's Water Resources Consultant may be invited to 
participate.

A, C, D, E John Dundas

Ambassador appointed to Provincetown Water & Sewer Board. Joint Water Meeting scheduled for October 24, 2022. 
Staff of Provincetown and Truro have started meeting to discuss capacity and planning to build capacity for the 
municipal  water line.

NEW: Truro and Provincetown held a joint water meeting on October 24, 2023 to discuss short-, medium- and long-
term water demands of both towns; to receive the Provincetown Water Department's Report; and to hear Water 
Resources Consultant Scott Horsley's Report on Recharge and Watershed. Additionally, in November 2022, a reserve 
fund transfer was approved and the Select Board approved participation in an analysis of Provincetown and Truro's 
future water demand.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE

Next steps include:
Receiving the water demand analysis.
Ambassador may wish to begin to draft 
objectives/ steps to help encourage full cycle 
water usage. 

18

The Select Board will provide resources in the FY2023 budget to 
increase the digitization of town services and records, and address 
cybersecurity and will lay the groundwork for a five-year digitization 
and cyber security plan that will be initiated in FY2024. The Select 
Board Ambassador working with the Town Manager and IT Director 
will provide an outline to present at a Select Board meeting prior to 
beginning the FY2024 Budget Process.

A, D, E John Dundas

Town Clerk Fullerton submitted grants for digitization and records storage to the CPC and the Community Compact 
Grant Program. Digitization efforts included in the 2022 Annual Town Meeting Warrant: Clerk/ Planning record 
digitization, additional financial transparency and budgeting software modules, building permit software, and CPA 
request for digitizing Town records.

NEW: The FY2024 Budget Process is complete and included funding for some new digitization efforts. The budget 
process also included a pilot effort for creating departmental budgets in the new budget module of the Town's 
financial transparancy software.  The digitization of Clerk/ Planning records is on hold while a new Town Clerk is 
recruited. The procurement process was completed and the next step will be to finalize contract terms and identify 
priority records.

ONGOING

Next steps include:
Implementation of the digitization projects 
already funded.
Tasking department heads with identifying 
department functions that are digitized and 
prioritizing areas that should be digitized in 
the future to develop the five-year plan.
Creating a template for the 5-year plan.

19

The Select Board will develop and implement a “Civility Pledge” 
that will be read at the beginning of all meetings of the Select Board 
and all Select Board- appointed boards, committees and 
commissions, and will request that elected boards do the same. 
(Continued into FY2023) 
CONTINUED

D, E Susan Areson

The Select Board discussed an initial version of the pledge. Ambassador Areson prepared a revised version that is 
ready for review and further discussion.

NEW: On March 7, 2023 the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court ruled that a public comment policy or "civility 
restraint," used by the town of Southborough violates the free speech rights codified in the Massachusetts 
Constitution. 

ONGOING

Next steps include:
In light of the SJC decision, the Board may 
wish to hold further discussion about ways to 
modify the draft version of the pledge or to 
modify this objective entirely. 

20

The Select Board will task the Economic Development Committee 
with inviting the Massachusetts Cultural Council to present to the 
Select Board, Economic Development Committee and the Truro 
Cultural Council on the process of creating a designated cultural 
district in Truro. (Continued into FY2023)

A Kristen Reed
Town Planner Carboni, Member Areson and Chair Reed have been communicating with the EDC and the 
Massachusetts Cultural Council and are reviewing the materials provided by the MCC. An MCC representative visited 
Truro to get a visual of the area that may be considered to be designated as a cultural district.

ONGOING

Next steps include: 
Identifying a meeting date for a presentation 
by a representative of MCC, or by Town staff 
or a member of the EDC, on designated 
cultural districts.



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  DPW 
 
REQUESTOR:  Jarrod J. Cabral, DPW Director & Brian Boyle, Energy Committee Chair 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Select Board Policy 43 and Policy 55         
 
EXPLANATION: An “electric first” clause has been added to Policy 43: Vehicle Maintenance 
and Replacement, and Policy 55: Replacement of Police Vehicles, that requires electric vehicles 
and equipment to be the first option considered when purchasing new or replacement 
vehicles or equipment. These proposed policy revisions were crafted by the Energy Committee 
in consultation with Public Works Director Cabral. Police Chief Calise’s feedback was also 
requested.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A       
  
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  May negatively impact Green Community status and grant 
availability. The Board’s policies will not be reflective of best practices to lower carbon 
emissions.          
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO revise Select Board Policy 43: Vehicle Maintenance and 
Replacement, and Policy 55: Replacement of Police Vehicles, as proposed and to electronically 
sign. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Select Board Policy 43 
2. Select Board Policy 43-redlined 
3. Select Board Policy 55  
4. Select Board Policy 55-redlined 

 

Agenda Item:  7B 
 
 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 7B1 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #43 
 

Date: Adopted January 19, 2010; Revised November 14, 2017; September 13, 2022; June 23, 
2023 

 
*This policy was revised at the September 13, 2022 Select Board meeting solely to reflect the titles 
used in the Town Charter for the Town Manager and Select Board and to modify language to be 
gender neutral. No changes were made to the content of the Policy at that meeting. 

 
Subject: VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT 

 
Vehicles of the Town of Truro shall be maintained at a safe operating level to ensure the overall 
efficiency of the department and the safety of the employees who operate them. As such, vehicles 
will be recommended to be replaced as warranted. In an effort to prepare financially for foreseeable 
replacements, department heads, in coordination with the Town Manager, should propose an 
estimated replacement schedule for vehicles needing replacement in the five subsequent years in the 
Capital Improvement Plan each year. 

 
When a Department Head deems that a vehicle should be replaced, the following steps shall be 
followed: 

 
a. The Department Head or his designee shall request that the mechanic assigned to the DPW 
examine the vehicle and complete the Vehicle Service Check Form. The mechanic should consider 
the safety of the vehicle, as well as whether repairs to the vehicle would be economical, in conference 
with the Director of Public Works. The mechanic may report the following: 

 
1. The vehicle is safe to continue in service. 
2. The vehicle should be removed from service until repaired. 
3. The vehicle should be replaced but may continue in service. 
4. The vehicle should be replaced and should be removed from service. 

 
b. The Department Head shall then review and sign the inspection form. 

 
c. The form will then be available for review upon the Department Head's request for additional  
funding for repairs or for a replacement vehicle. 
 
d. Purchase of electric vehicles and equipment should be considered first when new or 
replacement vehicles or equipment are requested by the Department Head, provided the electric 
option is economically viable on a total cost of ownership basis, capable of providing the necessary 
level of service, and reasonable accommodations can be made to charge the vehicles. Exemptions to 
the electric vehicle first policy include select emergency management and public works vehicles that 
may need to remain fossil fuel powered in the event of a prolonged power outage.  
 



  Agenda Item: 7B1 
 
 
 

Kristen Reed, Chair Susan Areson, Vice-Chair 
 
 

John Dundas, Clerk Robert Weinstein 
 
 
  

Stephanie Rein 
 

Select Board  
Town of Truro 



  Agenda Item: 7B2 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #43 
 

Date: Adopted January 19, 2010; Revised November 14, 2017; rev September 13, 2022; June 
29, 2023 

 
*This policy was revised at the September 13, 2022 Select Board meeting solely to reflect the titles 
used in the Town Charter for the Town Manager and Select Board and to modify language to be 
gender neutral. No changes were made to the content of the Policy at that meeting. 

 
Subject: VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT 

 
Vehicles of the Town of Truro shall be maintained at a safe operating level to ensure the overall 
efficiency of the department and the safety of the employees who operate them. As such, vehicles 
will be recommended to be replaced as warranted. In an effort to prepare financially for foreseeable 
replacements, department heads, in coordination with the Town Manager, should propose an 
estimated replacement schedule for vehicles needing replacement in the five subsequent years in the 
Capital Improvement Plan each year. 

 
When a Department Head deems that a vehicle should be replaced, the following steps shall be 
followed: 

 
a. The Department Head or his designee shall request that the mechanic assigned to the DPW 
examine the vehicle and complete the Vehicle Service Check Form. The mechanic should consider 
the safety of the vehicle, as well as whether repairs to the vehicle would be economical, in conference 
with the Director of Public Works. The mechanic may report the following: 

 
1. The vehicle is safe to continue in service. 
2. The vehicle should be removed from service until repaired. 
3. The vehicle should be replaced but may continue in service. 
4. The vehicle should be replaced and should be removed from service. 

 
b. The Department Head shall then review and sign the inspection form. 

 
c. The form will then be available for review upon the Department Head's request for additional  
funding for repairs or for a replacement vehicle. 
 
d. Purchase of electric vehicles and equipment should be considered first when new or 
replacement vehicles or equipment are requested by the Department Head, provided the electric 
option is economically viable on a total cost of ownership basis, capable of providing the necessary 
level of service, and reasonable accommodations can be made to charge the vehicles. Exemptions to 
the electric vehicle first policy include select emergency management and public works vehicles that 
may need to remain fossil fuel powered in the event of a prolonged power outage.  
 



  Agenda Item: 7B2 
 
 
 

Kristen Reed, Chair Susan Areson, Vice-Chair 
 
 

John Dundas, Clerk Robert Weinstein 
 
 
  

Stephanie Rein 
 

Select Board  
Town of Truro 



  Agenda Item: 7B3 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 
 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #55 
Date: February 10, 2015; Revised November 28, 2017; September 13, 2022; June 29, 2023 

 
*This policy was revised at the September 13, 2022 Select Board meeting solely to reflect the titles 
used in the Town Charter for the Town Manager and Select Board and to modify language to be 
gender neutral. No changes were made to the content of the Policy at that meeting. 

 
Subject: Replacement of Police Vehicles 

 
Public Safety is one of the most important services provided by the Town of Truro. The Select Board 
recognizes that the Truro Police Department must be provided the resources to maintain a fleet of 
vehicles that is of the appropriate number and condition to meet the public safety needs of the Town. 
The Police Department’s vehicles must be safe to drive, available when needed and maintained at a 
reasonable cost. 

 
Based on past experience, the typical police vehicle should be replaced every four years. 
Accordingly, the Truro Select Board supports the Police Departments recommendation to maintain a 
fleet of seven vehicles and barring unusual circumstances, the Department should replace up to two 
vehicles per year, as part of the Town’s Capital Outlay Business Practices. 

 
Vehicles identified for replacement will be based upon condition and the joint recommendation of the 
Town’s Mechanic and the Chief of Police. Vehicle replacement needs and fleet size beyond the 
above criteria would require justification by the Chief of Police and recommendation by the Select 
Board for approval by Town Meeting. 
 
Purchase of electric patrol vehicles should be considered first when new or replacement vehicles are 
requested by the Chief of Police, provided the electric option is economically viable on a total cost of 
ownership basis, capable of providing the necessary level of service, and reasonable accommodations 
can be made to charge the vehicles. Exemptions to the electric vehicle first policy include select 
emergency management vehicles that may need to remain fossil fuel powered in the event of a 
prolonged power outage.  
 

 
 

                Kristen Reed, Chair Susan Areson, Vice-Chair 
 
 

 
John Dundas, Clerk Robert Weinstein 

 
 

Stephanie Rein 
 

Select Board 



  Agenda Item: 7B3 
Town of Truro 



  Agenda Item: 7B4 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fax: (508) 349-5505 
 

POLICY MEMORANDUM #55 
Date: February 10, 2015; Revised November 28, 2017; September 13, 2022; rev 
9/13/2022,Revised June 29, 2023 

 
*This policy was revised at the September 13, 2022 Select Board meeting solely to reflect the titles 
used in the Town Charter for the Town Manager and Select Board and to modify language to be 
gender neutral. No changes were made to the content of the Policy at that meeting. 

 
Subject: Replacement of Police Vehicles 

 
Public Safety is one of the most important services provided by the Town of Truro. The Select Board 
recognizes that the Truro Police Department must be provided the resources to maintain a fleet of 
vehicles that is of the appropriate number and condition to meet the public safety needs of the Town. 
The Police Department’s vehicles must be safe to drive, available when needed and maintained at a 
reasonable cost. 

 
Based on past experience, the typical police vehicle should be replaced every four years. 
Accordingly, the Truro Select Board supports the Police Departments recommendation to maintain a 
fleet of seven vehicles and barring unusual circumstances, the Department should replace up to two 
vehicles per year, as part of the Town’s Capital Outlay Business Practices. 

 
Vehicles identified for replacement will be based upon condition and the joint recommendation of the 
Town’s Mechanic and the Chief of Police. Vehicle replacement needs and fleet size beyond the 
above criteria would require justification by the Chief of Police and recommendation by the Select 
Board for approval by Town Meeting. 
 
Purchase of electric patrol vehicles should be considered first when new or replacement vehicles are 
requested by the Chief of Police, provided the electric option is economically viable on a total cost of 
ownership basis, capable of providing the necessary level of service, and reasonable accommodations 
can be made to charge the vehicles. Exemptions to the electric vehicle first policy include select 
emergency management vehicles that may need to remain fossil fuel powered in the event of a 
prolonged power outage.  
 

 
 

                Kristen Reed, Chair Susan Areson, Vice-Chair 
 
 

 
John Dundas, Clerk Robert Weinstein 

 
 

Stephanie Rein 
 

Select Board 



  Agenda Item: 7B4 
Town of Truro 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Fire and Rescue Department  
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager, Tim Collins, Fire Chief  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Vote to Approve Traveling Paramedic Contract                      
 
EXPLANATION:  With the approval of free cash transfer at 2023 Annual Town Meeting for Article 
6, Section 14, at Town Meeting, the Town intends to enter into a contract to source short-term 
Emergency Medical Service supplemental support (Traveling Paramedics) as the Fire & Rescue 
Department begins to transition to a service-provision model where the department operates 
without the supplemental support of Lower Cape Ambulance. This paramedic support will ensure 
adequate service provision throughout the transition as the Town recruits full-time Firefighter 
Paramedics to fill the open positions approved at Town Meeting. This support is intended to 
augment the existing support provided by Lower Cape Ambulance so that the Town can ensure 
this critical and lifesaving service is delivered to our community during this 18-24 month 
transition to an independent ALS Transport service.  
    
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  $457,335.00 of the $706,000.00 approved for the 2023 
ATM Free Cash Transfer, Article 6, Section 14.  
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Traveling paramedics will not be sourced to support ALS 
transport for the Town of Truro 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve contract to secure traveling paramedic services to 
support the provision of ALS Transport service for the Town of Truro and authorize the Town 
Manager to sign the Best Practice Medicine contract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Best Practice Medicine Contract  

 

Agenda Item:  7C 
 
 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 1 of 14 

Staffing Services Agreement 

1. Parties and Effective Dates. 

1.1. The parties to this Staffing Services Agreement (“Agreement”) are Best Practice Medicine 
(“Staffing Company”) and the Town of Truro (“Client”) and sometimes referred to 
hereinafter as a “Party” or collectively “Parties.” 

1.2. This Agreement is effective beginning on June 26, 2023 and shall remain in effect 
continuously until December 22, 2023, unless terminated earlier by either Party pursuant 
to Section 9.11 of this Agreement. Should the Parties continue to work together after June 
26, 2023 the terms of this Agreement shall apply and continue on a month to month basis 
unless a termination pursuant to Section 9.11 of this Agreement is exercised. 

1.3. This is an agreement for and concerning the provision of staffing services by Staffing 
Company to Client for compensation.  Client desires to engage Staffing Firm to provide 
such services due to staffing shortages caused by the national paramedic/EMT shortage. 
Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to mean Staffing Company and Client are 
partners, are a joint enterprise, are joint venturers, are agents of each other, or that either 
is the agent of the other.   

2. Staffing Services. 

2.1. Staffing Company shall supply to Client qualified employees of Staffing Company to 
perform work for and on behalf of Client according to the assignments and job descriptions 
requested by the Client at the rates set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto (“Assigned 
Employees”).  Any and all assignment(s) of Assigned Employees by Staffing Company 
to Client shall be pursuant to and subject to the terms of this Agreement.  A qualified 
employee is an individual who, in addition to having requisite credentials, has been subject 
to a CORI check under Massachusetts law or comparable procedure under the laws of 
another state.   

2.2. Staffing Company shall timely pay Assigned Employees weekly based upon time records 
either made and kept by Client or, if made and kept by Staffing Company, based upon 
time records approved by Client all wages earned during the preceding seven-day pay 
period less required federal and state withholdings and less any other withholdings 
authorized by an Assigned Employee or otherwise required.  The term “time records,” 
means records of hours worked by Assigned Employees.  Client represents and warrants 
such time records accurately state all hours worked by Assigned Employees during the 
applicable pay period and that Client has not permitted any Assigned Employee to work 
any period of time not recorded on time records. 

2.3. Staffing Company shall timely report to federal and state taxing authorities the wages and 
withholdings of Assigned Employees and timely remit to such taxing authorities required 
withholdings. 

2.4. Staffing Company shall maintain or caused to be maintained statutorily required workers 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 2 of 14 

compensation insurance covering all Assigned Employees and shall administer claims for 
workers compensation benefits made by Assigned Employees. 

3. Payment for Staffing Services Provided. 

3.1. For the time period specified in the attached Statement of Work, Staffing Company 
guarantees the agreed upon rates for the staffing services provided to Client pursuant to 
this Agreement.  However, in the event of certain increases in the costs incurred by 
Staffing Company to provide such staffing services, such as increase(s) of the federal, 
state, or locally required minimum wage, of the Federal Unemployment Tax (“FUTA”), 
of the Federal Insurance Contributions Act tax (“FICA”), of the State Unemployment 
Insurance tax (“SUI”), of workers compensation premiums, of any employment benefits 
required by federal, state, or local laws or regulations, and/or the inclusion of any Assigned 
Employees as part of any collective bargaining unit, Staffing Company shall be entitled to 
increase any agreed upon rates by an amount or amounts commensurate with any such 
increased costs incurred by Staffing Company.   

3.2. Staffing Company shall submit to Client each week or as otherwise agreed by Staffing 
Company and Client in writing an invoice or invoices for staffing services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Client shall pay to Staffing Company within thirty (30) days 
of the date Client receives such invoice(s) or as otherwise agreed in writing the full amount 
of such invoice(s) by ACH transfer  of funds to Staffing Company.  Client shall provide 
point of contact information for accounts payable department.  

3.3. Any undisputed invoice(s) not paid by Client in full within thirty (30) days of the date any 
undisputed invoice(s) are submitted by Staffing Company to Client, shall be subject to a 
charge of interest at the rate of one and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month of the unpaid 
amount(s).  The term “undisputed invoice” means any invoice that correctly states based 
on time records submitted to Staffing Company by Client and/or approved by Client the 
number of hours worked by Assigned Employees during the applicable pay period at the 
agreed upon hourly rates of pay.   

3.4. Should Client fail to pay to Staffing Company the full amount of any undisputed invoice(s) 
within thirty (45) days of the date any invoice(s) are submitted by Staffing Company to 
Client, Staffing Company shall have in addition to any other remedies available to Staffing 
Company pursuant to this Agreement or to applicable law, the right to terminate this 
Agreement immediately. 

3.5. Should the client dispute the amount of any invoice(s), Client shall timely pay to Staffing 
Company the undisputed amount and promptly notify Staffing Company of the disputed 
amount and of the basis for disputing the disputed amount.  Client and Staffing Company 
shall then make good faith efforts to resolve the dispute informally.  If the Parties are not 
able to informally resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days of the date Client notifies 
Staffing Company of the disputed amount, then either Party may pursue whatever remedy 
or remedies might be available pursuant to this Agreement and/or to applicable law.   

4. Management and Supervision of Employees.   



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 3 of 14 

4.1. As the general employer of Assigned Employees, Staffing Company shall have the 
exclusive authority and duty to hire, assign, counsel, reprimand, discipline, or discharge 
any and all Assigned Employees assigned to Client.  Client shall have no such authority 
as to any Assigned Employee(s) or as to any Staffing Company Administrative Personnel.   

4.1.1. Client shall promptly forward to Staffing Company for handling exclusively by 
Staffing Company any and all requests for any leave or other time off work made by 
any Assigned Employee. 

4.1.2. Client shall promptly notify Staffing Company of any and all requests for a 
modified work schedule made by any Assigned Employee. 

4.1.3. Client shall promptly notify Staffing Company of any and all requests for any work 
accommodations made by any Assigned Employee, including, but not limited to, 
requests for accommodation based on any temporary or permanent disability, on any 
medical condition, and/or based on religious beliefs.  

4.2. Client may request that Staffing Company discontinue the assignment to Client of any 
Assigned Employee.  Because the discontinuation of the assignment of an Assigned 
Employee could be construed to be an adverse employment action and could under some 
circumstances give rise to an employment related claim and to potential joint and several 
liability on the part of Client and Staffing Company, Client shall consult with Staffing 
Company about any requested assignment discontinuation so Client and Staffing 
Company can jointly assess whether discontinuation of the assignment is appropriate 
under the circumstances.  Client shall not unilaterally discontinue the assignment of any 
Assigned Employee.  In the case of misconduct or negligence on the part of such Assigned 
Employee, Client can remove the Assigned Employee from the shift and inform the 
Staffing Company immediately. 

4.3. Unless Staffing Company and Client expressly agree in writing, Assigned Employees and 
Staffing Company Administrative Personnel shall not have any authority to in any way 
manage, supervise, schedule, assign work, direct the work of, counsel, reprimand, 
discipline, or perform any human resource or administrative duties or function as to any 
regular employee of Client, and Client shall not call upon any Assigned Employee or any 
Staffing Company Administrative Personnel to do so.  The term “regular employee of 
client” means an employee of client paid his or her wages by client and not by Staffing 
Company. 

4.4. Client shall not permit, require, or direct any Assigned Employee(s) to operate any 
equipment or machinery, to work in an elevated position above ground, or to perform any 
assignment or duties other than those specified in the applicable job description placed at 
the time of the job order(s). 

4.5. Client shall not permit, require, or direct any Assigned Employee(s) to operate any 
equipment or machinery of client for which the Assigned Employee(s) are not specifically 
trained, certified, or licensed to operate or use.   

4.6. Client shall not permit, require, or direct any Assigned Employee(s) to operate any 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 4 of 14 

equipment or machinery not in compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local 
law(s) or regulation(s).   

4.7. Client shall make and keep any and all information and records required by any applicable 
federal, state, or local law(s) or regulation(s) as to any equipment or machinery that is or 
may be operated by any Assigned Employee(s).   

4.8. Client shall at all times follow Staffing Company’s recommendations regarding its Illness 
and Injury Prevention Program and regarding periodic safety inspections to be performed 
by Client and/or by Staffing Company.  Client shall ensure that Assigned Employees 
comply with the Illness and Injury Prevention Program, and Client shall promptly conduct 
a thorough investigation of any known or reported industrial illness or industrial injury 
suffered or sustained by any Assigned Employee.  

4.9. Client shall provide a suitable place for Assigned Employees to work, to rest, and to take 
meal periods in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations.  For example: 

4.9.1. All premises and work areas shall comply with applicable requirements of the 
federal Occupational Safety and Health Act. 

4.9.2. The temperature maintained in each work area where Assigned Employees are 
assigned to work shall provide reasonable comfort consistent with industry-wide 
standards for the nature of the process and of the work performed.  If the work process 
creates excessive heat or humidity, Client shall take all feasible means to reduce such 
excessive heat or humidity to a degree providing reasonable comfort.    

4.10. Client shall provide to Assigned Employees at no charge any and all uniforms, 
safety equipment, and/or protective clothing reasonably necessary or otherwise required 
by Client, if any, for Assigned Employees to perform the duties or tasks Client may direct 
Assigned Employees to perform.  Because Client provides and controls the premises and 
equipment or machinery thereon where Assigned Employees work, Client shall be 
responsible for training and compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations, such as the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act.  

4.11. Client shall ensure that any regular employee of Client who performs any 
supervisory or management role as to any Assigned Employee(s) is in compliance with all 
required sexual harassment and other pertinent training.  

4.12. Client shall ensure the following as to any Assigned Employees working under 
Client’s supervision: 

4.12.1. Assigned Employees shall not be permitted to perform any work before clocking 
in at the beginning of the workday or to perform any work after clocking out at the 
end of the workday.  

4.12.2. Time spent by Assigned Employees to attend meetings, and/or to attend training 
required by Client is compensable work time under state law, and all such time must 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 5 of 14 

be recorded as hours worked.  

4.12.3. To the extent required by any applicable law, regulation or policy, Assigned 
Employees shall be provided rest periods.  

4.12.4. Assigned Employees shall be provided an unpaid duty free meal period of at least 
thirty (30) minutes. Should an employee agree to lawfully forego voluntarily any meal 
period, the Client has the burden to prove existence of a valid agreement permitting 
the same under Massachusetts state law.  

4.12.5. To the extent required by any applicable law, regulation or policy, Assigned 
employees shall be provided at least one day off after six (6) consecutive days of 
work. 

4.13. Lactation Accommodation. 

4.13.1. Client shall provide a reasonable amount of break time to accommodate an 
Assigned Employee desiring to express breast milk.  The break time shall, if possible, 
run concurrently with any paid break time already provided to the employee.   

4.13.2. Client will provide Assigned Employees with the use of a room or location to 
express milk in private. This room or location may be where the employee normally 
works. The room or location will:  

4.13.2.1. not be a bathroom; 

4.13.2.2. be in close proximity to the employee’s work area; 

4.13.2.3. be shielded from view; 

4.13.2.4. be free from intrusion while the employee is expressing milk; 

4.13.2.5. be safe, clean, and free of toxic or hazardous materials; 

4.13.2.6. contain a surface to place a breast pump and personal items; 

4.13.2.7. contain a place to sit; and 

4.13.2.8. have access to electricity or alternative devices including, but not limited 
to, extension cords or charging stations, needed to operate an electric or battery-
powered breast pump. 

4.13.3. The Company will also provide access to a sink with running water and a 
refrigerator or cooling device suitable for storing milk in close proximity to the 
employee’s workspace.  The use of the room for lactation shall take precedence over 
other uses, but only for the time it is in use for lactation purposes. 

4.13.4. If an Assigned Employee desires an accommodation, the employee must submit a 
request to Staffing Company’s Human Resources Department. If a request for 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 6 of 14 

accommodation is made by Assigned Employee to Client, Client shall immediately 
notify Staffing Company.  If the Client is unable to provide break time or a location 
to express milk, the Client will provide a written response to the Assigned Employee’s 
request and provide a copy of the response to Staffing Company. 

5. Reducing and Managing Risk. 

5.1.           The Parties each shall fully comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations. 

5.2. Should Client become aware that or suspect that an Assigned Employee has suffered or 
sustained any workplace illness or injury, Client shall notify Staffing Company 
immediately and under no circumstances more than eight (8) hours after Client first 
becomes aware or suspects such a workplace illness or injury to help ensure the proper 
handling of any potential workers compensation claim and to help avoid the potential loss 
of the workers compensation exclusive remedy if applicable.  

5.3. Should Client become aware that a current or former Assigned Employee has made or 
intends to make an employment related claim alleging on the part of Client and/or on the 
part of Staffing Company any violation of any federal, state, or local law or regulation 
governing employment, Client shall within 24 hours notify Staffing Company of such 
claim or intended claim and provide to Staffing Company copies of any writings regarding 
such claim(s) or intended claim(s), such as any letters or email messages asserting such 
claim(s), any complaints filed with any federal or state court, and any charges or 
complaints filed with or submitted to any federal, state, or local government agency.  

5.4. Should Client become aware of any attempts by any person or entity to organize any of 
Client’s regular employees or any Assigned Employees for purposes of collective 
bargaining (i.e., representation of a unit or units of employees by a labor union), Client 
shall within 24 hours notify Staffing Company of any such attempt(s) so that inadvertent 
violations of the National Labor Relations Act might be avoided and so that appropriate 
action, if any, can be taken.   

5.5. Staffing Company shall maintain in effect at all times while this Agreement is in effect 
and for a period of no less than one year after the termination of this Agreement, if any, 
the following policies of insurance:   

5.5.1. Workers Compensation Insurance covering all Assigned Employees. 

5.5.2. Employment Practices Liability Insurance (“EPLI”) with a per claim policy limit 
of not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1 Million) and a self-insured retention or 
deductible of not more than Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00). 

5.5.3. Commercial General Liability (“CGL”) Insurance with a per occurrence policy 
limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), an aggregate policy limit 
of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2 Million).  

5.6. Client shall maintain in effect at all times while this Agreement is in effect and for a period 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 7 of 14 

of no less than one year after the termination of this Agreement, if any, the following 
policies of insurance:   

5.6.1. Workers Compensation Insurance covering all regular employees of Client.   

5.6.2. EPLI with a per claim policy limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1 Million)  

5.6.3. CGL Insurance with a per occurrence policy limit of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00), an aggregate policy limit of not less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2 Million) 

5.7. Insurance coverage for claims of alleged violation(s) of federal, state, or local laws and 
regulations governing employment can be jeopardized by untimely reporting of a covered 
or potentially covered claim to an applicable insurer.  Therefore: each Party shall within 
48 hours of the time the Party becomes aware of any employment related claim by a 
current or former Assigned Employee or of any circumstances that might reasonably be 
expected to result in an employment related claim notify the other Party in writing so that 
the appropriate insurer(s), if any, can be promptly notified.  For example, many EPLI 
insurers consider complaints submitted to the CRD to be a “claim” that triggers an 
insured’s obligation to give notice of the “claim” to the EPLI insurer.   

6. Indemnity. 

6.1. Staffing Company shall to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and at Staffing 
Company’s sole expense defend via attorneys of Staffing Company’s choice, indemnify, 
and hold harmless Client and each of Client’s officials, employees, agents, representatives, 
successors, and permitted assigns from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, actions, 
administrative proceedings, arbitrations, liabilities, losses, expenses, damages, costs, 
interest, and expenses of whatever kind of whatever amount, including, but not limited to, 
attorney’s fees and costs, that arise out of: (1) any actual or alleged unlawful act or 
omission of any Staffing Company employee while acting under Staffing Company’s 
direction, direct supervision or direct control; and/or (2) any breach of this Agreement on 
the part of Staffing Company.  Staffing Company’s obligations to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the persons and entities to be defended, indemnified, and held harmless 
pursuant to this Agreement fully apply and are not negated or diminished in any way on 
account of any actual or alleged strict liability or any actual or alleged joint and several 
liability. However, the obligations of Staffing Company to indemnify and/or hold 
harmless the persons and entities to be defended, indemnified, and/or held harmless 
pursuant to this Agreement shall not apply to liability determined by a judge, a jury, or an 
arbitrator to be caused solely by the unlawful act or omission of such person or entity. 

6.2. Client shall to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law and at Client’s sole expense 
defend via attorneys of Staffing Company’s choice, indemnify, and hold harmless Staffing 
Company and each of Staffing Company’s shareholders, officers, directors, members, 
employees, agents, representatives, successors, and assigns from and against any and all 
claims, lawsuits, actions, administrative proceedings, arbitrations, liabilities, losses, 
expenses, damages, costs, interest, and expenses of whatever kind of whatever amount, 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 8 of 14 

including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and costs, that arise out of or are alleged to 
arise out of (1) any actual or alleged unlawful act or omission on the part of Client; or (2) 
any breach of this Agreement on the part of Client.  Client’s obligations to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the persons and entities to be defended, indemnified, and 
held harmless pursuant to this Agreement fully apply and are not negated or diminished 
in any way on account of any actual or alleged strict liability or any actual or alleged joint 
and several liability.  However, the obligations of Client to indemnify and/or hold 
harmless the persons and entities to be defended, indemnified, and/or held harmless 
pursuant to this Agreement shall not apply to liability determined by a judge, a jury, or an 
arbitrator to be caused solely by an unlawful act or an omission of such person or entity.   

6.3. The obligations of Paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 of this Agreement remain in full force and effect 
in the event of a termination of this agreement as to any act or omission giving rise to such 
an obligation or obligations occurring on or before the effective date of any termination 
of this Agreement. 

7. Confidentiality. 

7.1. Client may necessarily during the course of the service relationship between Client and 
Staffing Company learn of certain trade secrets, proprietary information, confidential 
information, and private information of Staffing Company and/or of Assigned Employees 
and/or of Staffing Company Administrative personnel.  Except as required under the 
Massachusetts Public Records Law, Client shall at all times keep confidential and not 
disclose to other persons or entities, except as expressly required by law any such trade 
secrets, proprietary information, confidential information, or private information.  Client 
is subject to the Massachusetts Public Records Law, and will comply with such law; 
however, should any request require disclosure of information related to Staffing 
Company or its Assigned Employees Client shall notify Staffing Company as soon as 
reasonably practicable, but no later than five (5) business days prior to disclosure to the 
requesting party, to permit Staffing Company to respond, object or otherwise take action 
to protect disclosure of information that it deems not subject such a records request.        

7.2. Staffing Company shall likewise at all times keep confidential and not disclose to other 
persons or entitles except as expressly required by law any trade secrets, proprietary 
information, confidential information, or private information of Client.  

7.3. Staffing Company agrees that in providing the Services, Assigned Employees will have 
access to private and confidential information of patients that is protected by federal and 
state laws, including but not limited to, the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act and its implementing regulations (“HIPAA”).  Staffing Firm agrees 
that solely for purposes of HIPAA compliance, Assigned Employees will be considered 
member of Client’s “workforce” as that term is defined by HIPAA. Assigned Employees 
complete all required training on privacy and information security and to comply with all 
Client’s policies and procedures related to privacy and information security, including the 
Code of Conduct and related policies 

8. Disclaimer of Liability. 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 9 of 14 

8.1. Staffing Company expressly disclaims liability for any claim, loss, or liability of any kind 
whatsoever resulting from any of the following: 

8.1.1. Client’s failure to safeguard premises, processes, or systems at a standard of care 
no less than it would for Client’s regular employees; or, without Staffing Company’s 
express prior written consent, entrusting Assigned Employees with unattended 
premises, cash, checks, keys, credit cards, trade secret information, negotiable 
instruments, equipment, portable computers, cell phones, or other valuables. 

8.1.2. Client directing or permitting an Assigned Employee to use any vehicle, regardless 
of ownership, in connection with the performance of any duties without adding 
Staffing Company and/or Assigned Employees to its liability insurance.  Staffing 
Company will conduct the requisite Department of Motor Vehicle checks for 
Assigned Employees and verify appropriate licensing for the Assigned Employee.  
Client agrees to maintain all vehicles in safe working order.  

8.1.3. Promises of any change of employment status made by Client to any Assigned 
Employee or Staffing Company Administrative Personnel. 

8.1.4. Claims by any person or entity relating to any product, good, or service of Client. 

8.1.5. Client making any substantial changes to an Assigned Employee’s job assignment, 
job duties, or job risks without Staffing Company’s prior express written consent. 

8.1.6. The conduct of Client’s officials, employees, or agents.  

9. General Provisions. 

9.1. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement and understanding between the Parties 
concerning the subject matters hereof, and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations, 
proposed Agreements, and Agreements written and oral.  The Parties each acknowledge 
that neither any other Party, nor any agent or attorney of the other Party, has made any 
promise, representation or warranty whatsoever, express or implied, not contained herein 
concerning the subject matters hereof to induce such Party to execute this Agreement; and 
further acknowledge that they have not executed this Agreement in reliance upon any such 
promise, representation or warranty not contained herein.  This Agreement shall not be 
changed, altered, modified, revised, amended, or suspended, except by an instrument in 
writing signed by the Parties.  

9.2. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by 
the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.  This agreement shall not be 
assigned in whole or in part by either Party without the prior written consent of the other 
Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

9.3. This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Massachusetts and shall in all 
respects be interpreted, enforced, and governed by and under the laws of that State. 

9.4. Headings herein have been inserted for convenience only, and shall not be considered or 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 10 of 14 

referred to in resolving questions of interpretation or construction. 

9.5. This Agreement shall be construed without regard to the identity of the persons who 
drafted its various provisions; each and every provision of this Agreement shall be 
construed as if each of the Parties participated equally in the drafting of the same, and any 
rule of construction that a document is to be construed against the drafting Party shall not 
be applicable to this Agreement. 

9.6. Each of the Parties shall hereafter execute and deliver, or cause their respective attorneys 
to execute and deliver, any and all further documents and instruments, and perform any 
other act reasonably necessary or convenient to effectuate the terms of this Agreement. 

9.7. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered or otherwise transmitted by one Party to 
another Party in connection with this Agreement shall be delivered or otherwise 
transmitted as follows: 

9.7.1. If to Staffing Company, delivered or transmitted to: 
 

Best Practice Medicine LLC 
601 Haggarty Lane Suite A 
Bozeman, MT 59715 
406-602-4202 
 

9.7.2. If to Client, delivered or transmitted to 
 
Darrin K. Tangeman, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 
Town of Truro  
PO Box 2030 
24 Town Hall Road  
Truro, Massachusetts 02666 
508.214.0201 
dtangeman@truro-ma.gov  

 
9.8. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver 

of any other provision of this Agreement, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver 
constitute a continuing waiver unless expressly stated in writing by the Party to be charged.  
In the event any one or more provisions of this Agreement shall be declared to be illegal 
or unenforceable, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or the 
enforceability of any other provisions of this Agreement, and the illegal or invalid 
provisions shall be construed as limited to the minimum extent possible to cure said 
illegality or invalidity. 

 
9.9. Each Party will be excused from a delay in performing, or a failure to perform, its 

obligations under this Agreement to the extent such delay or failure is caused by the 
occurrence of any contingency beyond reasonable control (and without any fault of) such 
Party.  In such event, the performance times shall be extended for a period of time 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 11 of 14 

equivalent to the time lost because of the excusable delay.  However, if any excusable 
delay continues more than thirty (30) calendar days, the Party not relying on the excusable 
delay may, at its option (and without penalty or financial obligation of any kind), terminate 
this Agreement upon notice to the other Party.  In order to avail itself of the relief provided 
in this Paragraph for an excusable delay, the Party must act diligently to remedy the cause 
of, or to mitigate, or to overcome such delay or failure.  

 
9.10. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or otherwise unenforceable, the other provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force an effect, and Staffing Company shall nevertheless 
be entitled to be paid by Client the reasonable value of the services provided by Staffing 
Company to client and to retain all sums paid by Client to Staffing Company.  

9.11. This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

9.11.1. Any Party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by giving to the 
other Party at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice of the Party’s intent to 
terminate this agreement and of the intended effective date of such termination.   

9.11.2. Either Party may terminate this Agreement, effective upon written notice to the 
other party (the “Defaulting Party”), if the Defaulting Party materially breaches this 
Agreement, and such breach is incapable of cure, or with respect to a material breach 
capable of cure, the Defaulting Party does not cure such breach within       seven (7) 
days after receipt of written notice of such breach; or 

9.12. Any respective obligations of Staffing Company or of Client which by their nature 
would continue beyond the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement shall 
survive such termination, cancellation, or expiration. 

 
9.13. This Agreement shall be construed as though entered into and to be performed in 

Barnstable, Massachusetts.  Any lawsuit, action, petition, motion, or other proceeding, 
including, but not limited to any lawsuit, action, petition, motion, or proceeding to 
interpret, construe, enforce, rescind or revoke this Agreement shall be brought, venued 
and conducted in the State of      Massachusetts     .  By this Agreement, the Parties each 
hereby consent and submit to the jurisdiction of the State of       Massachusetts      with 
respect to any lawsuit, action, petition, motion or proceeding arising out of this 
Agreement. 

 
9.14. Each person who executes this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she 

has the right, power, legal capacity and authority to bind his or her principle to all of the 
terms of this Agreement and that no further approval or consent of any person or entity to 
enter into and satisfy the terms of this Agreement. 

9.15. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, any of which shall 
be deemed to be the original if fully executed by both of the Parties.  This Agreement may 
be executed and delivered by facsimile and, when fully executed and delivered, shall be 
binding and enforceable.  The Parties so executing this Agreement shall within five (5) 



  Agenda Item: 7C1 

Page 12 of 14 

days of delivering the Agreement by facsimile deliver a hard copy of this Agreement via 
United States Mail, but the failure to deliver a hard copy of this Agreement shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of this Agreement. 

 
The parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives on 
the dates written below. 
 
Dated:  _____________________, 2023 Best Practice Medicine LLC 

 By:  ____________________________________ 

 Name 
Title 

Dated:  _____________________, 2023 ___________________________(Client Name) 

 By:  ____________________________________ 

 Name 
Title 

 
  



 

Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT A 
STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW #1) BEST PRACTICE 

MEDICINE/___________________________ 

This Statement of Work (“SOW”) # 1 is subject to the terms and conditions of Staffing Services 
Agreement (“Agreement”) between The Town of Truro, Massachusetts (“Client”) and Best 
Practice Medicine LLC (“Staffing Company”) The below terms shall be in addition to all terms 
contained in the Contract, which retains in full force and effect.  

SECTION 1. PURPOSE 
  

1.1 The purpose of this SOW is to confirm the scope of work deliverables, and terms of 
payment relating to deployment by Staffing Company of temporary staff supporting The 
Town of Truro, Massachusetts. 
  

 SECTION 2. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
  
2.1 Staffing Firm will provide and deploy 2 Paramedic(s) to support The Town of Truro, 
Massachusetts for a period of 90 consecutive days of operation.  Additional staff can be added to 
this SOW upon request.  Reduction in staff requires a 30 day notice. 
 

a) Start date of operations will be on June 26, 2023 
 

b) The anticipated staffing schedule of at least 2 paramedic(s) will be 24 hour shifts and 
with the possibility of operation adjustments and shall be subject to the scheduling and 
assignment by Client in accordance with the terms the Agreement.    

 
 SECTION 3. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENTS 
  

3.1 In consideration of the services to be provided under this SOW the Town of Truro, MA 
agrees to pay Best Practice Medicine, LLC:   

a) $99.00 per hour for straight time hours for paramedic; 

b) $138.94  per hour for paramedics andf or all hours that qualify as overtime hours under 
applicable laws  

c) Meal period and any applicable paid breaks must be provided by the Client consistent with 
applicable law and the terms of the Agreement as detailed in Section 4.   

d) Lodging stipends are provided by the Staffing Company. Bill rates are all inclusive of 
travel, per diem, and lodging stipends.  

 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

3.2 The Staffing Company shall submit a bi-weekly invoice on the 1st and 15th of every 
month, requesting reimbursement for services provided under this SOW. The Staffing 
Company may not incur expenses in excess of the payment schedule set forth in Section 3 
except by written amendment of this SOW. 
 

SECTION 4. TERMS OF SOW 
  

4.1 The term of this SOW is for a total of 180 days, from employee start or June 26, 2023 
(whichever sooner) through December 22, 2023 unless terminated otherwise in accordance 
with the provisions of the Agreement. This SOW may be renewed by mutual written 
agreement of the parties for a period of up to 120 additional days. 

 
SECTION 5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

5.1 All provisions and terms of the Staffing Service Agreement between Client and Staffing 
Company are incorporated by reference into this SOW. In the event of a conflict between 
this SOW and the Staffing Services Agreement, the Staffing Services Agreement shall 
control. This SOW does not stand alone, if the Staffing Services Agreement terminates so 
does this SOW. This SOW and the Staffing Services Agreement represent the entire 
agreement between the parties. 
 
The parties, through their authorized agents, have executed this SOW on the dates set out 
below.  
 
 
 
BY:_________________________________DATE:____________ 
 
 
 

 
BY:_________________________________DATE:_____________ 
Andrew Egstad 
Vice President of Accounts at Best Practice Medicine LLC 
 



1 
 

                                                                           Agenda Item:  7D 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 
 

             Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Health and Conservation 
 
REQUESTOR: Emily Beebe, Health and Conservation Agent 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Condominium conversion to year-round status 
 

EXPLANATION: The Shoreline Beach Condominium is requesting conversion from seasonal to year-round 
use per §40.3 Conversion of Cottage or Cabin Colony, Motor Court, Motel or Hotel. The amended Zoning by-
law allows existing condominiums to convert to year-round use if the condominiums meet building, health, 
and safety codes.  
The Shoreline Beach Condominium was created April 16, 2013, and restricted to seasonal use pursuant to its 
covenant.  They have revised the covenant and all units completed the year-round conversion inspections on 
November 29, 2022.  All 13 units are ready to proceed to year-round occupancy and have brought all health, 
conservation, safety, and building corrections into compliance.  The process then requires the vote of the 
Select Board to approve removing the seasonal covenant. 

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   Shoreline Beach Condominium will not gain year-round status and will 
remain seasonal.  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the year-round use and removal of the seasonal covenant for 
Shoreline Beach Condominium. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Shoreline Beach Step 1 and 2-Condo Conversion Application 
2. Shoreline Beach Trust 

 



2 
 

3. Shoreline Beach Release of Covenant 
4. Shoreline Beach Master Deed 
5. Provincetown Water Dept. 

 



Agenda Item:  7D1

















Agenda Item:  7D2

































































































Agenda Item:  7D3















Agenda Item:  7D4





































































Agenda Item:  7D5



1 
 

Agenda Item:  7E   

TOWN OF TRURO 
 
 

             Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Health and Conservation 
 
REQUESTOR: Emily Beebe, Health and Conservation Agent 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Year- Round Status 
 
EXPLANATION: The Southwind Court Condominium, Unit 1 and Unit 8,  is requesting conversion from 
seasonal to year-round use per §40.3 Conversion of Cottage or Cabin Colony, Motor Court, Motel or Hotel. The 
amended Zoning by-law allows existing condominiums to convert to year-round use if the condominiums 
meet building, health, and safety codes.  
The Southwind Court Condominium Trust was created August 11, 2016, and restricted to seasonal use 
pursuant to its covenant.  They have revised the covenant and all units completed the year-round conversion 
inspections on May 9, 2023 & May 16, 2023.  Unit 1 and Unit 8 are ready to proceed to year-round occupancy 
and have brought all health, safety, and building corrections into compliance. A partial release of the seasonal 
covenant is required to allow for the year-round use for Unit 1 and Unit 8.   

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   Unit 1 and Unit 8 will not gain year-round status and will remain seasonal.  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the year-round use and partial removal of the seasonal covenant 
for Unit 1 and Unit 8 of the Southwind Court Condominium. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Southwind Court Condo Conversion Application 
2. Southwind Court Condo Partial Release of Covenant 
3. Southwind Court Condo Deed-Unit 1 

 



2 
 

4. Southwind Court Condo Deed-Unit 8 
5. Southwind Court Condo Trust 
6. Southwind Court Condo Master Deed 
7. Provincetown Water Department Checklist 

 



Agenda Item:  7E1









Agenda Item:  7E2















Agenda Item:  7E3















Agenda Item:  7E4















Agenda Item:  7E5

























































Agenda Item:  7E6





























































































Agenda Item:  7E7



1 
 

Agenda Item:  7F 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 
 

             Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Health and Conservation 
 
REQUESTOR:  Emily Beebe, Health and Conservation Agent  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Seasonal Condominium Conversion  
 
EXPLANATION:  The Days Cottages Condominium, Units: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 
22, 23 are requesting conversion from seasonal to year-round use per §40.3 Conversion of Cottage or Cabin 
Colony, Motor Court, Motel or Hotel. The amended Zoning By-Law allows existing condominiums to convert to 
year-round use if the condominium meets building, health, and safety codes.  
The Days Cottages Condominium was created February 11, 2008, and restricted to seasonal use pursuant to its 
covenant.  They have revised the covenant and all 22 units completed the year-round conversion inspections 
on October 11, 2022. The forementioned 19 units are ready to proceed to year-round occupancy and have 
brought all health, safety, and building corrections into compliance.  The process then requires the vote of the 
Select Board to approve removing the seasonal covenant. 

 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Days Cottages Condominium Units: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 14, 15, 16, 18, 
19, 20, 21, 22, 23 will not gain year-round status and will remain seasonal. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the year-round use and removal of the seasonal 
covenant for Units: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 & 23 of The Days 
Cottages Condominium. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

 



2 
 

1. Master Deed 
2. Declaration of Trust 
3. Provincetown Water Department 
4. Release of Covenant 
5. Step 1 and Step 2 

 



Agenda Item:  7F1

























































Agenda Item:  7F2









Agenda Item:  7F3



Agenda Item:  7F4





















Agenda Item:  7F5













1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 
 
 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Health and Conservation  
 
REQUESTOR:  Emily Beebe, Health and Conservation Agent 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Presentation by Outer Cape Community Solutions: OUTER CAPE WELLNESS 
HAPPENINGS- regional public health efforts from Eastham to Provincetown 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Outer Cape Health Agents have been working with Outer Cape 
Community Solutions (OCCS) for the past year, and the collaboration has recently been 
awarded an ARPA grant by Barnstable County to provide a shared “Outer Cape behavioral and 
public health consortium”. Alex Nelson, the network coordinator of OCCS will present an 
overview of what health and wellness means to our community, and how our Outer Cape 
collaborations will help us to improve the social determinants of health.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:   N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  None 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Power Point from OCCS 
2. Press release ARPA 

 

Agenda Item:  7G 
 
 
 
 



Outer Cape Wellness Happenings
Regional Public Health Efforts from Eastham to Provincetown

Agenda Item: 7G1



Introductions

Hillary Greenberg-Lemos - Eastham 
Health Director

Meredith Ballinger - Wellfleet Health & 
Conservation Agent (interim)

Emily Beebe - Truro Health & Conservation 
Agent

Lezli Rowell - Provincetown Health 
Director

Alex Nelson - Outer Cape Community 
Solutions’ Network Coordinator



Boards of Health

Public outreach (esp. on infectious diseases/pandemics): 
informational web pages, press releases, public 
communications, writing guidance/FAQs, public hearings

Weekly wastewater testing: sampling, shipping, posting 
analysis

Respond to complaints: housing, hoarding, foodborne illness 
tracing; investigations of nuisance, dog bites, barn 
inspections

Supporting other departments: Code Compliance Officer, 
Harbormaster’s Dep’t, DPW, COA, FD, PD, Building, Rec, Admin

Board of Health Meetings: creating agendas, writing action 
requests, collecting updates, post-meeting follow ups, 
meeting posting requirements (an important conduit for the 
public)

Business Licensing: Food service (10), wastewater (3), refuse 
haulers, tanning/body art, tobacco, pools

Septic Inspections & Sewer Planning: Review septic 
inspection reports and review letters, sewer upgrades/repairs

Permitting: Flow review, deed restrictions, temporary food 
operations, etc - working with other departments (DPW, 
Building)

Food service operations and trainings: Guidance and 
inspections, farmers markets, provide classes like ServSafe, 
Choke Saver, FOG class

Pools/Hot Tubs: Pre-operational inspection and monthly 
sampling

Towns are “responsible for assuring access to a comprehensive set of public health services defined 
by state law and regulations. Massachusetts local boards of health are charged with a complex set of 
responsibilities including enforcement of state sanitary, environmental, housing, and health codes” - 
including:



Outer Cape Community Solutions

Outer Cape Community Solutions is an independent coalition of non-profit, municipal, and healthcare 
agencies that each contribute to improved health and wellbeing across the Outer Cape.

Rural Health Network
● Funded by a HRSA (federal) grant for Rural Health Network development
● Funded by State Office of Rural Health (Mass DPH) focused on health equity
● Collaboration with other Rural Health Networks across the state

“Build collaborative solutions that increase health equity and improve the health and 
wellbeing of all Outer Cape residents through education, advocacy, and collective action”

Partners include but are not limited to:
Helping Our Women
Outer Cape Health Services
Barnstable Co. Dept Human Serv.
Lower Cape Outreach Council

ASGCC
Bay Cove
Cape Cod Children’s Place
Sharing Kindness

Police Depts
Lower Cape Ambulance
Homeless Prevention Council
Cape Cod Community College



Outer Cape Community Solutions

“Build collaborative solutions that increase health equity and improve the health and 
wellbeing of all Outer Cape residents through education, advocacy, and collective action”



Public Health
“the science and art of preventing disease, 
prolonging life and promoting health through 
the organized efforts and informed choices of 
society, organizations, public and private, 
communities and individuals”

Health isn’t just based on what happens at 
the doctor’s office. It’s also everything that 
affects wellness, outside of clinical systems 
- like whether you have a job, the safety and 
quality of housing or school, how easy it is 
for you to get around town, if you have 
enough food, if you feel socially connected



Health Maintenance

Crisis Response

Safe environment, economic stability, educational access

Spectrum of 
Health

What it means to 
look “upstream”



Spectrum of 
Health

Health Maintenance

Crisis Response

Safe environment, economic stability, educational access

Health clinics

EMS/Police Intervention

1:1 Outpatient Therapy
Emergency Funds

SNAP Benefits

Social connection

Wellness visits

In-home health aide

Legal counsel

Access to specialists

Resource Navigation

PROACTIVE

REACTIVE

What it means to 
look “upstream”



Spectrum of Resources

Healthcare providers: Medical appointments, chronic 
illness, clinical care

EMS: Emergency medical care, acute illness

Police Departments: Safety and wellness (including 
domestic calls, substance use)

Boards of Health: “Public Health” (including 
education, clinics, restaurants), Environmental Health

Councils on Aging: Resources (financial, health, 
social) for 60+ residents

Libraries: Connection, education, resources 
(including accessible internet, security, warmth)

Recreation Departments: Free & Accessible, 
physical activities, social connections, childcare

Schools: Free & accessible education, community, 
social connections

Health and Human Services Agencies:

● Food pantries, SNAP enrollment
● Free rides to medical appointments
● Financial resources
● Social support and connection
● Case management or resource navigation



360 Degrees of 
Public Health

We all have a part to play in public 
health across the Outer Cape

Healthcare 
Providers

Police 
Depts

EMS

Boards of 
Health

Councils 
on Aging

Libraries

Rec. 
Depts

Schools
Health & 
Human 

Services 
Agencies

NGO or 
Non-profit 

orgs



Why this 
partnership 
matters

The goal of our work together is to 
break down silos and increase 
communication and collaboration to 
more effectively address the public 
health challenges experienced by 
residents from across the Outer Cape

OCCS has been doing this work independently with 
the dozens of network partners through work 
groups, monthly networking meetings, and 
coordinated programs.

In October, OCCS & all 4 Town Health Departments 
signed an agreement (MOU) to officially partner on 

joint public health efforts.

Through coordinating with the Town Health Agents, 
the goal is to create cohesive relationships among 
each of the town departments and partner on 
systemic solutions across municipal and NGO 
agencies.

While it may look different from where each of us is 
standing, we are doing complementary work. 

We just need to talk to each other.



Why Regional Outer Cape Approach Makes Sense

Barnstable County? -
15 towns, challenge of equitable distribution of resources to most rural communities 
(lower populations often mean less funding, distanced from resources)

Lower & Outer Cape? -
8 towns, still - the challenge of equitable distribution of resources to most 
rural communities (LC is still substantially closer to resources than OC)

Outer Cape
Designated highest qualification of “rural” federally; similar 
challenges with transportation, food access, social connection, etc

Why not each town for themselves?



Why Regional Outer Cape Approach Makes Sense

Why not each town for themselves?

We can’t do it alone.

“A rising tide lifts all boats”

The challenges experienced in Eastham are similar to 
challenges in Provincetown (rural identities)

“Work smarter, not harder”

Combined resources =
 Increased capacity =
  Improved sustainability =
   Increased accessibility



What we’ve been 
able to accomplish 
together

● Memorandum of Understanding

○ Shared Services & Collaboration

● ARPA Award

○ Multidisciplinary healthcare team: Town Nurse 
& LMHC

○ Strengthening Municipal Partnerships Across 
Departments

○ Health & Wellness Screenings

● Winter Wednesdays Expansion

● COVID-19 Vaccines (Mass DPH)

● “Ask-A-Nurse” & Nutrition Program

● Mobile Unit for MAT (SUD) through CTC

● Regional Public Health Needs Survey

○ Eastham’s survey - coming soon!

● Building partnerships between OCCS partners 
and the towns



Upcoming Projects ● Opioid Remediation Funds Work Group

○ Creating proposals to submit to the 
Selectboards for regional efforts to 
combat Substance Use Disorder in our 
communities

● Ongoing guidance from Mass DPH: 

○ PHE grant prioritizes regional efforts 
and shared services (Barnstable 
County)

○ Piloting resources from a new 
branch of Mass DPH focused on 
health equity & racism

● Transportation Work Group & Advocacy

● Strategizing on Food Access



Thank you!

Alex Nelson - info@outercapecs.org

Lezli Rowell - LRowell@provincetown-ma.gov

Emily Beebe - EBeeBe@truro-ma.gov

Meredith Ballinger - Meredith.Ballinger@wellfleet-ma.gov

Hillary Greenberg-Lemos - HGreenberg-Lemos@eastham-ma.gov
outercapecommunitysolutions.org



  Agenda Item: 7G2 

 
 
 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Outer Cape Towns receive Barnstable County ARPA funds for a shared behavioral and public 

health consortium 
 

June 2, 2023 (Eastham, MA) – The Towns of Eastham, Wellfleet, Truro, and Provincetown are 
pleased to announce the award of $381,375 from Barnstable County for a shared Outer Cape 
Cod Behavioral and Public Health Consortium. This grant was made available under the 
American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) from the United States Treasury. These funds were 
released to respond to the far-reaching public health and negative economic impacts of the 
pandemic.  
 
The Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners, along with the members of the 
Assembly of Delegates and representatives from the U.S. Congressman Bill Keating, Senator 
Edward Markey, and Senator Elizabeth Warren, met this week to award $5 million in ARPA 
grants to organizations across Cape Cod. The Outer Cape Cod Behavioral and Public Health 
Consortium was one of 110 letters of intent submitted, one of 40 invited to submit complete 
proposals, and one of the 20 finalists.  
 
This initiative represents years of work and collaboration by the four-town health agents: Lezli 
Rowell, Town of Provincetown, Emily Beebe, Town of Truro, Hillary Greenberg-Lemos, Town 
of Wellfleet and Jane Crowley, Town of Eastham. The dedication of staff across the region, with 
the synergy of the collaboration with Outer Cape Community Solutions (OCCS), made this 
possible. 
 
This grant will allow the four Outer Cape Towns to provide coordinated nursing, behavioral 
health, and other vital services, which will supplement existing services, address current gaps, 
and connect residents to services, to create region-wide support. This will be done through the 
formation of “OC Wellness”, a collaborative initiative aimed at promoting health, inclusivity, 
and community engagement to residents across all four towns. Look forward to more 
announcements from “OC Wellness” as the program takes shape. 
 
More information on the Barnstable County ARPA Grants can be found at  
https://www.capecod.gov/2023/05/31/barnstable-county-announces-5-million-in-arpa-grants/ 
 
 

https://www.capecod.gov/2023/05/31/barnstable-county-announces-5-million-in-arpa-grants/


  Agenda Item: 7G2 

 
 
Jacqui Beebe, Eastham Town Manager, Hillary Greenberg-Lemos, Eastham Director of Health 
& Environment, Lezli Rowell, Provincetown Health Director, pictured with Local, State and 
Federal Representatives.  

 
 

### 
 

 



  Consent Agenda Item: 8A 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 
        Select Board Agenda Item 

 
DEPARTMENT: Licensing Department 
 
REQUESTOR: Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: June 29, 2023   
 
ITEM: Approval of Seasonal Business License: Lodging License-American Youth Hostel Inc dba Hostelling 
International USA, located at 111 North Pamet Road  
 
EXPLANATION: The Hostel International USA Lodging License is under the authority of the Select Board as the 
Local Licensing Authority.  
 
If the Board approves this license, the license will be issued only upon compliance with all regulations, 
receipt of the necessary fees, and proof of taxes paid in full for the fiscal year. There are no Board of Health 
Licenses issued to the Youth Hostel.   
 
 

Mass General Law 
Licenses & Permits Issued   

by Select Board 
 

Names of Businesses 

Chapter 140 § 23 Lodging House License Hostelling International USA 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: The applicant will not be issued their License to operate Hostelling 
International USA.  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO approve the 2023 seasonal Lodging House License for Hostelling 
International USA upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary fees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Business Application for 2023: American Youth Hostels Inc. 

 



























1 
 

                                                                                           Agenda Item: 8B 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 
DEPARTMENT: Administration  
 
REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  June 29, 2023 
 
ITEM: Cape Cod Chamber Bike Ride (September 17th) MADOT Event Notification Request Form 
Approval  
 
EXPLANATION:  The Cape Cod Chamber is holding its second summer charity ride benefiting 
17 local non-profits on Cape Cod. The ride will have upwards of 400 riders, and the route will 
pass through Truro with a rest stop at Noons Landing on Beach Point. Both the Use of Town 
Property and the Application for a Bike and Road Race have been approved by pertinent 
department heads.    
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):   The Chamber is responsible for covering police detail.  
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  There will be no approved access for the riders through Truro.  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO approve the MADOT Event Notification form for the Cape 
Cod Chamber Summer Cycle Event being held September 17, 2023.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Cape Cod Chamber Application packet   

 



Consent Agenda Item: SBI 

TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA 02666 

Tel: (508) 349-7004 Fox: (508) 349-5505 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

TO USE TOWN-OWNED PROPERTY 

A I. Golden Summer Enterprises E •1 pp ,cant:________________ ma1: 

Group Affiliation (If A■y): Cape Cod Chamber of Commerce

Mailing Address: 5 Patti Page Way City: Centerville . MA 

Phone: 508-280-7903

Type of Activity (Please be specific as to number of persons, equipmen t to be used (if any), whether food or 
beverage s will be served , parking arrangements, e t c.): 

Town Pr opertJ to be Used: Noons Landing-town property

D ) d H fu 
September 17, 2023, from 10:30 until 3:30 1 ate(s an ours o sc: ____ _____ _ __ Day: ____ _ 

Applicant is responsible for obhtining all necessary permit s and inspections (see page 2) 

I, as applican t for the above, do hereby acknowledge that the town is exempt from any liability for this activity. I, as 
applicant for the above, additionally guarantee that the area to be used will be cleaned and left free of any debris at the 
comple tion ofs· rt'-1-t\';·ty J 'fee of$50.00 is to be sub mitted to the Town upon approval of the application by the 
Town Manag •. 

May 10, 2023 
Date 

Action by the T ovm Manager: Date:-------

_ Approved as submitted 

_ Approved with the foll owing condition( s): 

_ Disapproved with the foll owi n g  reason(s): 

Si gnature of the Town Manager: 































  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 1 of 9 
 

Select Board Meeting Minutes      

May 10, 2023, Regular Meeting 

Via GoToMeeting Platform 

Select Board Members Present: Kristen Reed-Chair, Susan Areson-Vice Chair, John Dundas-Clerk, Robert 
Weinstein-Member, Stephanie Rein-Member 

Select Board Members Absent: None 

Others Present: Darrin Tangeman-Town Manager, Kelly Clark-Assistant Town Manager, Fire Chief Tim 
Collins, DPW Director Jarrod Cabral, Damion Clements-Community Services Director, Austin Smith-
Recreation & Beach Deputy Director, Emily Beebe-Health and Conservation Agent, Marissa Jackson-
Eversource Energy, Derrick Duquette-Town Employee, Lucas Tourgee-Town Employee, Georgette 
Ducey-Town Employee, Chris Lucy-Truro Voter, Kevin Grunwald-Truro Voter, Elizabeth Cook-Truro 
Voter, Mara Glatzel-Truro Voter, Kate Blehm-Truro Voter, Jeffrey Arnstein-Truro Resident and Trustee 

Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. Chair Reed introduced the Members and Town staff 
present.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chair Reed recognized Member Rein who commented on the recent passing of Peter Thrasher who 
worked at the Truro Public Library. Member Rein asked for a moment of silence, and it was observed. 

Chair Reed welcomed members of the public to offer comments and the following individuals did: 

DPW Director Cabral requested that an update on the DPW Cost Analysis be added to the next Select 
Board meeting’s agenda. 

Mr. Lucy commented that the DPW Facility location has still not been determined and this costs the 
Town approximately $200,000 per month in additional costs.  

Mr. Grunwald commented that the Council on Aging was not open on Mondays but open for special 
occasions such as yoga and other activities. Mr. Grunwald noted that this situation denies direct access 
for three straight days to the fragile population in Truro. Community Services Director Clements 
responded to Mr. Grunwald and clarified that the building is closed to the public but that the staff is 
working and accessible by telephone and email on Mondays. 

Chair Reed announced that the Select Board had voted unanimously, 5-0-0, to approve the 
Memorandum of Agreement between Truro and Truro Firefighters Local 5281 and to authorize the 
Town Manager to sign the Memorandum of Agreement and the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  

Chair Reed recognized Mr. Lucy who inquired about a recount for the recent election and Town 
Manager Tangeman responded by providing detailed information as to the process for a petitioner to 
request a recount. 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 2 of 9 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Eversource Energy-22 Highland Road 
Presenter: Marissa Jackson, Right of Way Agent, Eversource Energy 
 
Chair Reed opened the hearing and then recognized Ms. Jackson who said that Eversource is proposing 
the installation of 220’ of conduit under Highland Road to support a new community development 
project for the Town. There were no questions or comments from the Members or the members of the 
public. 
 
Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to close the hearing in the matter of 22 Highland Road. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Chair Reed made a motion to approve the petition for 22 Highland Road and authorize the Select 
Board to sign the Form of Order electronically. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

INTRODUCTION TO NEW EMPLOYEES 

A. Fire and Rescue Department: Derrick Duquette (Firefighter-Paramedic) and Lucas Tourgee 
(Firefighter/EMT) 
B. Council on Aging: Georgette Ducey (Outreach and Resource Coordinator) 

Chair Reed recognized Chief Collins and Community Services Director Clements who introduced the 
Town’s new employees for the respective departments. The new employees introduced themselves to 
the Members and the Truro community. Members welcomed the new employees. 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

None 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 3 of 9 
 

STAFF/COMMITTEE UPDATES 

A. Staff Update on 25 South Highland Road 
Presenter: Jarrod Cabral, DPW Director 
 
Chair Reed recognized DPW Director Cabral who provided an update on 25 South Highland Road. DPW 
Director Cabral also provided a timeline for the project, anticipated dates for the project’s contract 
awards, start of the project, total cost of the project, access to potential grant monies to reduce the 
overall cost, and briefly reviewed the Site Plan. DPW Director Cabral added that he reviewed the Site 
Plan as well by Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Barbara Carboni, Town Manager Tangeman, Assistant 
Town Manager Clark, and Health and Conservation Agent Emily Beebe. 
 
DPW Director Cabral and Members briefly discussed the cost of the renovations for the cottages. 
Members had no other comments or questions.  

TABLED ITEMS 

None 

SELECT BOARD ACTION 

A. Election of Select Board Officers (Chair, Vice-Chair, and Clerk) Presenter: Kristen Reed, Chair 

Chair Reed led the discussion among Members for nominations for these positions.   

Member Areson made a motion to approve Kristen Reed as Chair of the Select Board. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Abstained 
So voted, 4-0-1, motion carries. 
 
Member Dundas made a motion to approve Susan Areson as Vice Chair of the Select Board. 
Vice Chair Weinstein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Areson - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Member Rein made a motion to approve John Dundas as Clerk of the Select Board. 
Vice Chair Areson seconded the motion. 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
B. Review and Approve Select Board Liaison List Presenter: Kristen Reed, Chair 
 
Chair Reed led the discussion among the Members individually as to which assignments they would 
want to retain, relinquish, or assume.  
 
Member Dundas made a motion to approve the revised list of liaison assignments. 
Vice Chair Areson seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
C. Discussion and Possible Vote to Change Summer Recreation Fees Presenter: Damion Clements, 
Director of Community Services  
 
Chair Reed recognized Community Services Director Clements who provided an overview of this matter. 
Community Services Director Clements also requested a change to the Summer Recreation Fees which 
have not changed since 2017 and reduce the current 3-tier (resident, Outer Cape resident, and non-
resident) eligibility guidelines to 2-tier (resident and non-resident) eligibility guidelines. 
 
Community Services Director Clements and Members discussed the following highlighted topics: Truro 
fees compared to other Outer Cape towns, staffing for summer programs, multi-child discounts 
compared to Provincetown’s discounts, no signing bonuses for seasonal staff this year, afternoon 
activities are covered by the Recreation Revolving Account, future discussion to explore afternoon 
activities being funded in the budget for FY24. 
 
Chair Reed invited members of the public to comment on this agenda item and Chair Reed recognized 
Ms. Cook and Ms. Glatzel who provided comments on this agenda item stating that Provincetown’s 
summer recreation program is less expensive and included more days. Ms. Glatzel also noted that 
information regarding fees from Beach & Recreation has not yet been received. Chair Reed gave 
Community Services Director Clements the opportunity to reply and Community Services Director 
Clements did. Members expressed frustration that they felt “boxed in” in deciding tonight.  
 
Chair Reed recognized Ms. Blehm who commented that the Provincetown program was roughly $600 
less that Truro’s and included more days. Ms. Blehm also noted that the communication the 
Provincetown staff to Truro parents was excellent. 
 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Vice Chair Areson made a motion to approve the Recreation Program fee changes as proposed. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Abstained  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 4-0-1, motion carries. 
 
D. Vote to Enter into Contract Agreement with the Dennis Group Re: 25 South Highland Rd Presenter: 
Jarrod Cabral, DPW Director  

Chair Reed recognized DPW Director Cabral who provided a summary of the bid process and a review of 
the bid from the Dennis Group for this public works matter. There were no questions or comments from 
the Members. 

Member Weinstein made a motion to authorize the Town Manager to enter into and sign the contract 
with the Dennis Group. 
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
E. Approval of Year-Round Condominium Conversion of Seaside Inn on Cape Cod Bay Presenter: Emily 
Beebe, Health and Conservation Agent  
 
Chair Reed recognized Health and Conservation Agent Beebe who provided a brief review of this matter 
and introduced Mr. Arnstein who helped Town staff on this matter.  
 
Member Rein made a motion to approve the year-round use and removal of the seasonal covenant 
for A Seaside Inn on Cape Cod Bay Condominium. 
Member Weinstein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
F. Discussion, Call for, and Possible Approval of Date for Special Town Meeting (Fall 2023) Presenter: 
Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Chair Reed led the discussion with Members on what dates would be better suited for the fall Special 
Town Meeting and to discuss at a future Select Board meeting the possibility of holding this meeting on 
a Saturday to get better attendance. Assistant Town Manager Clark noted that the Charter provided the 
Select Board with more flexibility on selecting a date for the Special Town Meeting.  
 
Chair Reed and Members focused on dates in October with a preference for October 21, 2023, or 
October 28, 2023, with a 5 pm arrival time and a start time of 6 pm.  
 
Chair Reed announced that the Members would vote on the date at the next meeting so there was no 
vote. Members were hopeful that more constituents would voice their preference for a date.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature:  

1. Weekday Entertainment License-Sustainable Cape (Truro Farmers’ Market)  
2. 7-Day Entertainment License-Payomet Performing Arts Center  
3. Net Metering Agreement-Determination Letter  

B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals: Noelle Scoullar and Elizabeth Sturdy to Board of 
Registrars  
C. Review and Approve 2023 Seasonal Business Licenses: Terra Luna and Blackfish Restaurant-Common 
Victualer, Lewis Brothers’ Ice Cream-Hawker Peddler  
D. Review and Approve Non-Union Cost of Living Adjustment   
E. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes: Regular Meeting Minutes of 3.14.2023 and 3.21.2023 
 
Prior to the vote to approve the Consent Agenda, Member Rein announced that she was not present at 
the Select Board meeting on February 28, 2023, and so Member Rein will abstain from that vote. 
 
Vice Chair Areson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as printed in the packet minus 
Member Rein’s recusal from the vote on the entertainment license on the Truro Farmers’ Market as 
well as corrections of the minutes of 3.14.2023 and 3.21.2023.  
Member Dundas seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Areson – Aye 
Member Dundas – Aye 
Member Weinstein - Aye 
Member Rein - Aye  
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 

SELECT BOARD REPORTS/COMMENTS 

Member Weinstein stated that the Department of the Interior has started tearing down houses within 
the Seashore District. Member Weinstein wanted to make the public aware of this as he was troubled by 
what the federal government is doing. Member Weinstein voiced concerns over the current housing 
shortage in Truro and yet the federal government was now tearing down houses which previously 
housed workers. Member Weinstein concluded that he was disheartened by the number of cans and 
bottles littering the Seashore District and the littering had increased over recent days.  



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Member Rein thanked the community for the large turnout at the Annual Town Meeting and at 
yesterday’s election. Member Rein added that none of this would be possible without the hard work of 
Town staff and the community volunteers. 

 Member Dundas agreed with Member Rein’s comments and reminded all of those serving on a board 
or committee to complete the annual cybersecurity training as it was emailed to those individuals. 
Member Dundas was pleased to announce that the New England Hockey Journal had named Nauset 
sophomore Logan Poulin, of Truro, as the Division 3 Player of the Year for the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. Member Dundas then reviewed the schedule of upcoming meetings for which he serves 
as liaison.   

Vice Chair Areson announced her office hours this Friday at 12 pm at the Truro Library.  Vice Chair 
Areson said that there was a Blessing of the Land at the Highland House Museum where members of the 
Wampanoag Nation, students from Truro Central School, and other volunteers are building a wetu with 
a dedication scheduled for June 3, 2023. The Local Comprehensive Plan Committee is busy and will host 
a public meeting on June 24, 2023, to gather input from the public. 

Chair Reed thanked the voters and volunteers for their participation in yesterday’s election. Chair Reed 
said that she had met with State Senator Julian Cyr today discussing several issues to include 
Provincetown’s need for a new DPW facility but does not have the land to build one. As the current cost 
of building Truro’s new DPW facility is increasing, State Senator Cyr suggested to Chair Reed that the 
Town staff may want to engage with their Provincetown counterparts to see if Provincetown would be 
interested in a regional DPW facility. Chair Reed thanked the Members for her support as Select Board 
Chair.  

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

Town Manager Tangeman announced that there are provisional ballots which still need to be validated 
for the election result ending in a tie. Town Manager Tangeman noted that things could change, and he 
will announce when those votes will be validated and counted.  

Town Manager Tangeman provided an update on the nationwide litigation related to opioid harm 
liability. When these bankruptcy cases are settled, Town Manager Tangeman noted that they may 
impact opioid funding to the Town.  

Town Manager Tangeman announced that he and Assistant Town Manager Clark will attend next week’s 
Senior Luncheon and he will be happy to discuss the Council on Aging or any other issues which 
constituents would like to discuss with him. Town Manager Tangeman will host office hours between 
2:30-4 pm this week if anyone wants to make an appointment to meet with him. 

Town Manager Tangeman reviewed the agenda for the next Select Board meeting on May 23, 2023. 

Chair Reed added the following topics to the agenda: identify the fall Special Town Meeting date, Truro 
dune shacks, and a public hearing request for a special election requested by a constituent (which may 
or may not be on the agenda depending on the final validated and counted votes as previously noted by 
Town Manager Tangeman).  



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Vice Chair Areson also noted that DPW Director Cabral had requested to be added to the next meeting’s 
agenda regarding the proposed DPW facility. Vice Chair Areson said that the discussion should include: 
the possible site locations, the costs associated with the project, and the items which may be eliminated 
due to costs associated with the project. Vice Chair Areson added that a regional DPW may be a great 
opportunity. 

Member Weinstein added that as people are considering a Saturday Fall Town Meeting date an earlier 
start time such as 10 am should be considered. Member Weinstein noted that it may result in a higher 
turnout than a Saturday evening. Assistant Town Manager Clark will ask constituents what time they 
prefer for a Saturday meeting on social media and Alert Truro. Assistant Town Manager Clark will 
provide the results to the Members.  

Member Dundas made a motion to adjourn at 6:47 pm. 
Member Weinstein seconded the motion. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice Chair Weinstein – Aye 
Member Dundas - Aye 
Member Areson - Aye  
Member Rein - Aye 
Chair Reed – Aye 
So voted, 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Alexander O. Powers 
Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 
 
 
____________________________  
Darrin K. Tangeman Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 

Public Records Material Attachments  

Legal Notice 
Petition 
Form of Order 
Plan 
Public Hearing Advertisement 
Certified Abutters List 
Proposed Site Layout 
Proposed Architectural Improvements (Walsh Way) 
Proposed Architectural Improvements (127 S. Pamet) 
Current (FY23) Liaison Assignments 
Select Board Liaison Policy (Policy Memorandum #34) 
Rules and Regulations for Truro Recreation Program Eligibility for Taxpayers, Residents, and Visitors 



  Consent Agenda Item:  8C 

Page 9 of 9 
 

Truro Summer Recreation Youth Program Proposed Fees – 2023 
Contract 
Condominium Application 
Release of Covenant 
Declaration of Trust 
Master Deed 
Provincetown Water Department Report 
Application for Entertainment License – Truro Farmer’s Market 
Application for Entertainment License – Payomet Performing Arts Center 
Weekday/Saturday Performance Dates/Times – Payomet Performing Arts Center 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Public Entertainment Application – Payomet Performing Arts Center 
Sunday Performance Dates/Times – Payomet Performing Arts Center 
Certificate of Exemption - Payomet Performing Arts Center 
Determination Letter 
Determination Signature Page 
Application to Serve – Elizabeth Sturdy 
Application to Serve – Noelle Scoullar 
Renewal Application for 2023: Terra Luna Restaurant 
Renewal Application for 2023: Blackfish Restaurant 
Renewal Application for 2023: Lewis Brothers’ Ice Cream 
 
 


	7A3 Goals and Objectives Progress Report for FY23.pdf
	Sheet1

	7A2 Updates to Goals and Objectives for FY24.pdf
	Sheet1




